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“Finance for a Greener Tomorrow” embodies 
Ecofy’s mission. By fusing technology with green 
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Ecofy: Pioneering the Green 
Finance Revolution in India

Mission and Focus Founders & Product Segments

1. EV Financing: 

2. Solar Solutions:

3. SME Support:
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Presence and Partnerships

Promoters
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Key Performance Metrics (FY2024):

Ecofy: Pioneering the Green 
Finance Revolution in India (contd.)

Launch Date AUM

`

Equity funding 

`

Data-Tech enabled loans

Total Income 

`

Portfolio IRR Secured Book 

NPA (GNPA/NNPA): Geographic presence:

 

Partnerships:

Credit Rating: Sanctioned Debt:

`

Carbon Emissions savings

Customers Average Ticket Size 

`

Reach

Employees: 
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Achievements in FY2024

In FY2024, Ecofy established a strong 
presence in 14 states and 250 cities, 
growing our customer base to ~23,000 
through strategic alliances with over 
90 partners and advanced green 

saved over 9,441 tonnes of carbon 

operational excellence and environmental 
impact.
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Message from  
Arun Sharma

Dear Stakeholders,

At the intersection of 
capital and human 
talent lies the key 
to making Ecofy a 
standout outlier in the 

driving the adoption of 
sustainable practices 
across India.

Arun Sharma
Independent Director (Additional)
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rooftop solar installations, and energy-

innovative solutions while upholding the 
highest standards of quality and governance.

Arun Sharma
Independent Director (Additional)
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Message from  
Dhanpal Jhaveri - 
Eversource Capital

Dear Stakeholders,

forefront of green innovation. Our 

Dhanpal Jhaveri 
CEO,  
Eversource Capital
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Message from  
Aditya Mohan -  
FMO - Dutch Entrepreneurial Development Bank

Dear Stakeholders,

Aditya Mohan  

FMO - Dutch Entrepreneurial Development Bank
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Message from  
Rajashree Nambiar

Ecofy Finance Private Limited
Annual report 2023-24

Dear Stakeholders,

Pioneering the Future: Building India’s First 
Green Digital Ecosystem

At Ecofy, we are 
dedicated to creating 

that accelerates 
the transition to a 
sustainable, net-zero 
carbon world.

Rajashree Nambiar
Co-founder,  
Managing Director & CEO

14
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Laying the Foundation

Expanding Our Reach and Impact

Rajashree Nambiar
Co-founder, Managing Director & CEO

by expanding our reach through strategic 
partnerships and leveraging our digital 

India.
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Ecofy is strategically positioned as the gateway for 
green investments, channeling capital to eco-friendly 
projects and driving the transition to a low-carbon 
economy.

Govind Sankaranarayanan
Co-founder, Wholetime Director & COO

Message from  
Govind Sankaranarayanan

Dear Stakeholders,

Market Trends and Opportunities
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Operational Excellence

Technological Advancements

solutions, ensuring seamless integration 

initiatives.
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Leveraging Our Equity:

Future Outlook and The Way Ahead

By deploying advanced fraud detection 
systems and a robust credit risk assessment 
framework, Ecofy proactively protects its 
business and stakeholders, reinforcing  
its position as a trusted leader in green  

Managing Risk 

Message from  
Govind Sankaranarayanan (contd.)



Leadership
Strategy

Perform
ance

R
esponsibility

Statem
ents

Insights

1919

future.

Govind Sankaranarayanan
Co-founder, Wholetime Director & COO

Utilizing low-cost global climate-dedicated 

large-scale projects and positioning itself 
as a pioneer in the mainstream adoption of 
sustainable business practices.
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Leadership  
Team

Rajashree Nambiar 
Co-founder,  
Managing Director & CEO

Our success hinges 

commitment to 

excellence.
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Govind Sankaranarayanan 
Co-founder,  

Wholetime Director & COO

Our success is 

commitment to 
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Leadership Team  
(contd.)

Gaurav Garg 
Business Head -  

SME

Sumeru Shah 
Business Head -  

EV 2W

Swapnil Wakade 
Business Head -  

Residential Rooftop Solar

Sivaprasad Patnaikuni 
Business Head -  

EV 3W

P&L Drivers
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Kailash Rathi 
Head -  

Khushal Tipre 
Head -  

Ratul Paul Kartik Gupta 
Head -  

Future Focused Functions
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Anujeet Kudva Khwahish Rawal 

Head Compliance

Santosh Shidhaye 
Head - ESG

Leadership Team  
(contd.)

Governance
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Ankur Potnis 
Head -  

 Finance

Shraboni Fernandes 
Head -  

Marketing

Amishi Patel 
Head -  

Human Resources

Shreevar Narayan 
Chief Technology 

Vivek Khandelwal 
Head -  

Treasury

Nitesh Minocha 
Head -  

Operations

Business Enablers
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Our Values

Our Vision

 
 

Our Mission

26



Our Values

Collaboration: 

Integrity:

Diversity: 

Innovation:

Ownership:

27
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Cultivating Eco-Synergies: 
Strategic Partnerships and Alliances

Building a collaborative ecosystem through 
strategic partnerships and alliances is central 

revolution.

Building a Collaborative Ecosystem

 

 

Leveraging Technology and Innovation
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By building a collaborative ecosystem, 
leveraging technology, enhancing market reach, 
promoting knowledge sharing, and driving 
policy advocacy, Ecofy maximises its impact 
and accelerates the transition to a sustainable 
future.

Statem
ents

R
esponsibility
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Enhancing Market Reach and Impact

Cultivating Eco-Synergies:
Strategic Partnerships and Alliances (contd.)
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Driving Policy Advocacy and Industry Standards

Key Go-to-Market Strategies

 
 

 
 

Ecofy expands its market reach and impact 
through strategic alliances with renewable 

for large-scale solar and wind projects.
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Harnessing IoT for Green Finance: 
Ecofy’s Innovative Approach

leveraging IoT technologies to enhance asset 

innovative use of IoT data not only strengthens Ecofy’s 

customers move closer to achieving net-zero carbon 
emissions.
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Embedding Sustainability in  
Every Practice

future.

Ecofy Finance Private Limited
Annual report 2023-24
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01.  Comprehensive Risk 
Management

06.  Looking Ahead: A Vision for 
the Future

02. Technological Integration 
and Innovation

05. Training and Capacity 
Building

03. Embedding Environmental 
Responsibility

04. Strategic Partnerships and 
Ecosystem Development 

innovation.

01 02

0306

05 04

Comprehensive 
Risk  
Management

Education and  
Capacity 
Building

Technological 
Integration  
and Innovation

Strategic 
Partnerships 
and Ecosystem 
Development

Embedding 
Environmental 
Responsibility

Looking Ahead: 
A Vision for  
the Future
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FY2024

Customer Base: 
~23,000

Geographic Reach:  
14 States, 250 Cities

nationwide.

02

Employees: 450+

06

Location Presence:  

We operate from 

delivery of our 

03
Impact Created: 
9,441+ Tonnes of 
Carbon Emission 
Savings

on environmental 

Partnerships: 90+ 
Strategic Alliances

04
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Risk Management 
Frameworks

management 

deployment of 

08

Governance and 
Compliance

and regulatory 

Rating: CRISIL 
BBB+/Stable

to maintaining high 

Technological 
Advancements and 
Digital Integration

to our digital 

07
Marketing Initiatives

the rapidly evolving 

Average Ticket 
Size: INR 1.7 Lakhs

to a wide range of 

Leadership
Strategy

Perform
ance

R
esponsibility

Statem
ents

Insights



Ecofy Finance Private Limited
Annual report 2023-24

3838

 
Analysis

Global Economic Overview:

Despite these headwinds and 
the possibility of steady but 
slow growth, the push towards 
sustainable development and 
green investments is expected  
to intensify.
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IMF projecting a steady global 
growth rate of 3.2% for both 2024 
and 2025.

Green

Global Green Financing Overview:
Overview of Green Financing Globally:

Key Statistics and Trends in Sustainable 
Investments:* 

Global Outlook and Future Trends 
in Green Finance:

*Source: Sustainable Debt Global State of the Market, Climate Bonds Initiative, 2023.
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Overview of the Indian 
Economy
Economic Performance in FY24:

According to RBI India’s real GDP 
growth accelerated to 7.6% in FY 
2023-24.

RBI projects a GDP growth rate 
exceeding 7% for FY 2024-25.

Outlook for the Indian Economy

Management Discussion & Analysis (contd.)
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Green Financing in India

Green Finance: Market Trends, Challenges, and 
Opportunities

Trends:

Challenges:

Increased Green Bond Issuances:

`

` `

`
`

Integration of ESG Criteria:

Lack of Standardization: One of 

High Initial Costs:

Limited Awareness and Expertise: 

Opportunities:

Growing Demand for Renewable 
Energy: 

Government Support:

environment for the growth of green 

International Funding:
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Company Overview
History and Evolution of Ecofy

Business Model

Key Aspects of Ecofy’s Business 
Model: 

1. Retail Centric Approach: 

 

2. Product  for  

 

  EV-2Wheeler Financing:

 EV-3Wheeler Financing:  
 

 

 Solar Rooftop Financing: 

 

 SME Financing

Management Discussion & Analysis (contd.)
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3. Strategic Partnerships: 

 

4. Digital Ecosystem:

 

5. Liability Pool:

 

5. Pedigreed Institutional Investors/
Sponsors

 Eversource: The Green Growth 
Equity Fund

 

 FMO: Entrepreneurial Development 
Bank

 

EV 
2 Wheeler

EV 
3 Wheeler

Rooftop 
Solar
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Operational Performance

AUM

Disbursement

1. EV Financing: 
 I

Demand drivers for EVs:

a) Cost of Ownership:

 

c) Government Initiatives:

approximately 4.5%  
of new vehicle sales  
in FY24.

Management Discussion & Analysis (contd.)
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 Overall EV adoption projection in India

Vehicle Category EV Penetration Rates EV Volume (in ‘000s)
FY26 (E) FY30 (E) FY26 (E) FY30 (E)

20-30

Overall
 So

 A

a) EV-2 Wheeler Financing:

 

 b) EV-3Wheeler Financing:

 

2. Solar Rooftop Financing:
 A

 I
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`

`

 

 

`

3. SME Financing
 

output and providing employment 

 

a) Term Loan:

 

b) Working Capital:

 

a collateral-free lending solution 
that provides up to `25 lakh for 
solar projects. 

Management Discussion & Analysis (contd.)
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Customer Growth and Market Penetration

Strategic Developments 

5.

4.1. 7.

2. 8.
 

6.
cities

3.
`

9.

Financial Performance Analysis
(` in Lakh)

Particulars FY 2024 FY 2023

Total Income          3,343             216 

Total Expenditure          7,072          2,608 

Particulars FY 2024 FY 2023
-
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 A

 

 

Outlook and Strategy 

`

 EV-2W:

 EV-3W: 

 RTS:

 

Internal Financial Control

Next 5-year 
expected CAGR ~70% ~50% ~15% ~15% ~20% ~20% ~25% ~25%

Next 5-year 

potential  
(` ‘000 Mn) 

Transport Solar & Energy Water 
Management

Waste 
Management

Industrials Green 
Buildings

Agri & Land 
Use

Total

Water 

 
*includes Electric Forklifts, Charging Infra, LCV/MHCV

800-1,000 200-250

1,500-2000 500-1,000
-500

~2,500 <500 7,000-8,000

Management Discussion & Analysis (contd.)
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Risk Management Framework

Key Risks and Mitigation Strategies
1. Market Risk

 

2. Credit Risk

 

3. Operational Risk

 O

4. Compliance Risk

 

damage to reputation due to failure 

5. Technology Risk
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6. Asset Risk

 

Human Resources 

Technology 

Management Discussion & Analysis (contd.)
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Information Security

environment.

ESG 

 

 

 

Forward Looking Statements 
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Board of  
Directors

Arun Sharma  
Independent Director (Additional)

Rajashree Nambiar  
Co-founder, Managing Director & CEO

At Ecofy, we are 
committed to 
upholding the 
highest standards 
of corporate 
governance, 
which drives our 
performance and 
long-term value 
creation.
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Govind Sankaranarayanan  
Co-founder, Wholetime Director & COO

to ` `

Pankaj Thapar  
Non-Executive Director

Rohit Talwalkar 
Non-Executive Director
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Dear Shareholders,

Your directors present the 2nd Annual Report of Ecofy Finance Private Limited 
(Formerly known as Accretive Cleantech Finance Private Limited) (hereinafter referred 
to as “the Company/Ecofy”) together with the Audited Financial Statements for 

“FY”) beginning from April 1, 2023 to  
March 31, 2024 (hereinafter referred to as “year under review”). 

Pursuant to the order by Registrar of Companies, Centralized Processing Centre 
(“ROC”) dated January 30, 2024, name of your Company has changed from “Accretive 
Cleantech Finance Private Limited” to “Ecofy Finance Private Limited” this will 
underscore the focus on climate and to highlight the brand name of the Company 
“Ecofy”. The intimations with respect to the aforesaid change have been made and the 

The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (hereinafter referred to 
as “RBI”) as a Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial 
Company recategorized as NBFCs Base Layer (hereinafter referred to as “NBFC-BL”) 
as per Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – 
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (hereinafter referred to as “Scale Based 
Regulations”). 

Directors’ Report
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1. Financial Results:
(a) Standalone  results:

(` in lakh except earnings per share)

Particulars  For the  
Year ended  

March 31, 2024 

For the   
 period ended   

March 31, 2023

Total Income  3,342.66  215.86 

Total Expenses  7,813.06  2,647.29 

 (4,470.40)  (2,431.43)

Tax Expenses  (1,163.71)  (553.41)

 (3,306.69)  (1,878.02)

Other comprehensive Income  0.44  -   

 (3,306.25)  (1,878.02)

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares  3,674.59  561.65 

Earnings Per Share

Basic (0.90) (3.34)

Diluted*  (0.90)  (3.34)

(` in lakh except earnings per share)

Particulars  For the  
Year ended  

March 31, 2024 

For the   
 period ended   

March 31, 2023

Total Income  3,490.79  314.83 

Total Expenses  8,311.73  2,798.92 

 (4,820.94)  (2,484.09)

Tax Expenses  (1,164.70)  (552.53)

 (3,656.24)  (1,931.56)

Other comprehensive Income  0.44  -   

 (3,655.79)  (1,931.56)

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares  3,674.59  561.65 

Earnings Per Share

Basic (0.99) (3.44)

Diluted (0.99) (3.44)

2. D
The Board of Directors have not recommended 
a dividend for the FY 2023-24, in view of 
Company’s planned growth. 

3.
The details of transfer to reserves are provided 
in Note 17 of the Standalone Financial 
statements. 

4. R
Company:
Ecofy closed the year with an AUM of INR 367 
Cr across its product suite consisting of EV 
2W, EV 3W, RTS & SME loans. From having 112 
disbursal cases in Jan’23 to 4500+ cases in 

& is moving towards faster growth.
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Immediately after receipt of the license, the 
Company acquired Autovert Technologies 
Private Limited a technology Company that 

services for EV 2W and EV-3W asset classes. 
This acquisition gave the Company access to 
partnerships with vehicle OEMs, Battery OEMs, 
EV Service Providers, Financial Institutions and 
Insurance Companies who were integrated on 
the platform.

The foundation led in the early stage for 
developing & building the partnerships which 
has given Ecofy 90+ partners by the year end. 
This has played a vital role in scaling up the 
business. 

Having ~23000 customer base with 99% digital 
onboarding & 92% underwriting capabilities, 
Ecofy & Autovert have worked seamlessly to 
provide a user friendly & competent tech & 
data capability. 

5.
There was no change in the nature of business 
during the year under review. 

6.  Management Discussion and 
Analysis Report
Management Discussion and Analysis Report 
for the year under review is annexed as a 
separate section in the Annual Report.

7.  Alteration in Memorandum and 
Articles of Association:
During the year under review, the Company 
has altered its Memorandum of Association 
by entering in the Insurance Business and 
obtaining License of Composite Corporate 
Agent from Insurance Regulatory and 
Development Authority of India (IRDAI) 
along with the existing line of business for 

Additionally, the relevant clauses and provisions 
of Shareholders’ Agreement dated 16th October 
2023 executed by and amongst Green Growth 
Equity Fund, Employee Shareholders and 

existing Articles of Association vide an Extra 
ordinary General meeting held on 23rd October 
2023.

Further the Company also altered its Articles 
of Association by incorporating relevant 

Directors’ Report (contd.)

clauses of the Shareholders Agreement 
(‘SHA”) dated 25th January 2024 executed 
by and amongst Green Growth Equity Fund, 
Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij 
Voor Ontwikkelingslanden N.V. (FMO) 
Employee Shareholders and Company vide 
an Extraordinary General Meeting held on  
23rd February 2024.

Company with the Registrar of Companies and 
received the required Approvals.

8. Share Capital:
As on March 31, 2024, the Authorized Share 
Capital of the Company is INR 5,00,00,00,000/- 
(Indian Rupees Five Hundred Crores only) 
divided into 45,00,00,000 (Forty Five Crores) 
equity shares of INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten 
only) each amounting to 4,50,00,00,000 (Four 
Hundred and Fifty Crores) and  5,00,00,000 
(Five Crores) preference shares of INR 10/- 
(Indian Rupees Ten only) each amounting to 
INR 50,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fifty Crore 
only) 

The changes in the authorized, Issued, 
subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company 
during the year under review are as follows:

(a) Authorized Share Capital: 

(i)  The authorized capital was increased 
to INR 5,00,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees 
Five Hundred Crores only) divided into 
45,00,00,000 (Forty Five Crores) Equity 
shares of INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten 
only) amounting to INR 4,50,00,00,000/- 
(Indian Rupees Four Hundred and Fifty 
Crores only) and 5,00,00,000 (Five Crores) 
Preference shares of INR 10/- (Indian 
Rupees Ten only) each amounting to INR 
50,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fifty Crore 
only) vide ordinary resolution passed 
by the Members at their Extra Ordinary 
General meeting of the Company held on 
October 23, 2023.

the Company:

(i) Buy Back of Securities: 

  The Company has not bought back any of 
its securities during the year under review.
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(ii) Sweat Equity:  

  The Company has not issued any Sweat 
Equity Shares during the year under 
review. 

(iii) Bonus Shares:

  The Company has not issued any bonus 
shares during the year under review. 

(iv) Employee Stock Option:

  The Company has granted stock options to 

Subsidiary, to foster a spirit of ownership 
and entrepreneurial mindset. 

  Because of their nature, stock options help 
to build a holistic, long-term view of the 
business and a sustainability focus in the 
senior management team. Stock options 
are granted to employees on achieving 

tenure. 

  This has contributed to the active 
involvement of the leadership and senior 
team who are motivated to ensure long-
term success of the Company. Grant of 
stock options also allows the Company to 

pay, short-term incentives and long-term 

considerations and build the focus on 
consistent long-term results.

  The Board of Directors of the Company 
at its meeting held on 29th June 2023, on 
the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee adopted 
Employee Stock Option Plan named 
Accretive Cleantech Finance Private 
Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 
2023 (hereinafter referred to as the “Ecofy 
Finance Private Limited ESOP Plan 2023/ 
“Scheme”) which was approved by the 
Members vide Ordinary resolution passed 
at their Annual General meeting of the 
Company held on July 3, 2023.

  Further, the details on the Stock Options 
granted are included in the notes to 
accounts forming part of the Standalone 
Financial Statements.

(v) Rights Issue:

 (a)  The Company issued 10,50,00,000 (Ten 
Crore Fifty Lakh) Equity Shares of INR 
10 (INR Ten) on par on rights basis to 
Green Growth Equity Fund on May 23, 
2023, amounting to INR 1,05,00,00,000 
(Indian Rupees One Hundred and Five 
Crore);

(vi) Private Placement:

 (a)  The Company issued 30,00,000 (Thirty 
Lakh) Equity Shares of INR 10 (INR Ten) 
on par on Private placement through 
Preferential allotment to Mr. Govind 
Sankaranarayanan on October 19, 2023, 
amounting to INR 3,00,00,000 (Indian 
Rupees Three Crore);

 (b)  The Company issued 30,00,000 (Thirty 
Lakh) Equity Shares of INR 10 (INR Ten) 
on par on Private placement through 
Preferential allotment to Ms. Rajashree 
Nambiar on October 19, 2023, 
amounting to INR 3,00,00,000 (Indian 
Rupees Three Crore);

 (c)  The Company issued 4,50,00,000 
(Four Crore Fifty Lakhs) Equity 
Shares of INR 10 (INR Ten) on par 
on Private placement through 
Preferential allotment to Nederlandse 
Financierings-Maatschappij Voor 
Ontwikkelingslanden N.V. (hereinafter 
referred to as “FMO”) on February 23, 
2024, amounting to INR 45,00,00,000 
(Indian Rupees Forty-Five Crore);

 (d)  The Company issued 4,50,00,000 
(Four Crore Fifty Lakhs) Compulsorily 
Convertible Preference Shares of INR 10 
(INR Ten) on par on Private placement 
through Preferential allotment to FMO 
on March 27, 2024, amounting to INR 
45,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Forty-Five 
Crore).

The details on the Share Capital are included 
in the notes to accounts forming part of the 
Standalone Financial Statements in Note 16.

9. Deposits:
Being a non-deposit taking Company, the 
Company has not accepted any deposits from 
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the public within the meaning of the provisions 
of Master Direction - Non- Banking Financial 
Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits 
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are 
not applicable on the Company. Further, the 
Company shall not accept deposits from public 
without obtaining prior approval from the RBI. 

As per the Master Direction issued by the RBI, a 
resolution in this regard has also been passed 
by the Board of Directors.

Since the Company has not accepted nor 
invited any deposits and there are no amounts 
that remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the 
end of the year under review.

10.
Ventures or Associate Companies:
As on March 31, 2024, M/s Autovert Technologies 
Private Limited is the wholly owned subsidiary 
of the Company by virtue of its holding of 100% 
Equity Shares.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing 

of the Company’s subsidiary in Form AOC-1 is 
annexed as Annexure A to this Report.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 

statements in respect of subsidiary company 
are attached herewith.

During the period under review, there was no 
company which has become a Joint Venture/ 
Associate Company of the Company. 

The Company does not have any Joint Venture 
or Associate Company, no Company has 
become or has ceased to be a Subsidiary, Joint 
Venture or Associate Company of Ecofy.

The members are apprised that Autovert has 
issued and allotted 18,000 (Eighteen Thousand) 
Equity Shares on Rights issue basis having 
Face Value of INR 10 (INR Ten) at INR 3,332.63 
(Indian Rupees Three Thousand Three Hundred 
Thirty-Two and Sixty-Three paisa) including 
Security Premium on April 26, 2024, to Ecofy, 
amounting to INR 5,99,87,340/- (Indian Rupees 
Five Crore Ninety Nine Lakhs Eighty Seven 
Thousand Three Hundred Forty Only).

11. Board of Directors
(a)  Changes in the composition of the Board 

 The following changes took place in the 
composition of the Board of Directors during 
the year under review:

(i)  Appointment of Ms. Rajashree Nambiar 
(DIN: 06932632) as Managing Director of 
the Company:

  During the year under review, the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
proposed the appointment of Ms. 
Rajashree Nambiar (DIN: 06932632) as 
Managing Director after receipt of approval 
from Reserve Bank of India dated May 
10, 2023. The said appointment was duly 
approved by the Board at its meeting held 
on May 12, 2023 and shareholders in the 
Annual General Meeting held on 3rd July 
2023.

(ii)  Appointment of Mr. Arun Kumar Sharma 
(DIN: 10214064) as Independent Director 
(Additional) of the Company:

  During the year under review, the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
proposed the appointment of Mr. Arun 
Kumar Sharma (DIN: 10214064) as 
Additional Director (Non-Executive) of the 
Company in the capacity of ‘Independent 
Director”. The said appointment for a term 
of 5 consecutive years was duly approved 
by the Board on July 25, 2023 and shall be 
placed before the members in the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting.

(iii)  Appointment of Mr. Rohit Sharad Talwalkar 
(DIN: 00981843) as Non-executive Director 
(Additional) of the Company:

  During the year under review, the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
proposed the appointment of Mr. Rohit 
Sharad Talwalkar (DIN: 00981843) as 
Additional Director (Non-Executive) 
after receipt of approval from Reserve 
Bank of India dated August 31, 2023. The 
appointment was duly approved by the 
Board on September 8, 2023, and shall be 
placed before the members in the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting.

Directors’ Report (contd.)
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None of the directors of the Company are 

164(2) of the Act. The directors of the Company 
have made necessary disclosures, as required 
under various provisions of the Act.

N

  The Board of Directors duly met 8 (Eight) 
times during the year under review in respect 
of which proper notices were given and the 
proceedings were properly recorded and 
signed in the Minutes Book maintained for this 
purpose.

(c) Committees of the Board:

  The Company has the following Board 
Committee as on March 31, 2024:

(i) Audit Committee:

  During the year under review, the 
Audit Committee met 4 (four) times 

viz. 29th June 2023, 19th October 2023,  
13th December 2023 and 16th February 
2024. These meetings were scheduled well 
in advance for which proper notices were 
given to all the Committee members and 
the required quorum was present.

  In addition to the members of the 
Audit Committee, these meetings were 
attended by Statutory Auditors and 
their representatives and other senior 
executives who were considered necessary 
for providing input to the Committee.

  The Company Secretary acted as the 
secretary to the Audit Committee

  Further, during the year under review, there 
were no instances where the Board did 
not accept any recommendations of the 
Audit Committee.

  The composition of the Audit Committee 
is as follows:

Designation

1. Mr. Arun Kumar Sharma Chairman

2. Mr. Pankaj Thapar Member

3. Ms. Rajashree Nambiar Member

4. Mr. Govind Sankaranarayanan Member

5. Mr. Ankur Potnis Permanent Invitee

(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

  The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee has been constituted pursuant 
to the provisions of Section 178 of the 
Companies Act. The terms of reference of 
the Committee have been approved by the 
Board of Directors.

  During the year under review, the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

met 4 (four) times viz. 10th May 2023,  
12th May 2023, 29th June 2023 and  
16th February 2024. These meetings were 
scheduled well in advance for which proper 
notices were given to all the Committee 
members and the required quorum was 
present.

  The composition of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee is as follows:

Designation

1. Mr. Rohit Sharad Talwalkar Chairman

2. Mr. Arun Kumar Sharma Member

3. Mr. Pankaj Thapar Member
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(iii) Risk Management Committee:

  The Risk Management Committee has 
been constituted pursuant to the RBI 
guidelines to frame, implement and 
monitor the Risk Management Plan of the 
Company.

  During the year under review, the Risk 

Management Committee met 2 (Two) 
times viz. 30th June 2023 and 16th February 
2024. These meetings were scheduled well 
in advance for which proper notices were 
given to all the Committee members and 
the required quorum was present.

  The composition of the Risk Management 
Committee is as follows:

Designation

1. Mr. Rohit Sharad Talwalkar Chairman

2. Mr. Govind Sankaranarayanan Member

3. Ms. Rajashree Nambiar Member

4. Mr. Arun Kumar Sharma Member

5. Mr. Anujeet Kudva Permanent Invitee

(iv)  Information Technology Strategy 
Committee: 

  The IT Strategy Committee has been 
constituted pursuant to Reserve Bank 
of India (“RBI”) Master Direction on 
Information Technology Framework for 
the NBFC Sector read with RBI Master 
Directions, as amended for sustaining 
NBFC’s growth.

  During the year under review, the 
Information Technology Strategy 
Committee met 2 (Two) times viz. 30th June  
2023 and 13th December 2023. These 
meetings were scheduled well in advance 
for which proper notices were given to all 
the Committee members and the required 
quorum was present.

  The composition of the Information 
Technology Strategy Committee is as 
follows:

Designation

1. Mr. Arun Kumar Sharma Chairman

2. Mr. Govind Sankaranarayanan Member

3. Mr. Rohit Sharad Talwalkar Member

4. Ms. Rajashree Nambiar Member

5. Mr. Shreevar N (CTO) Member

D

 In pursuance of Section 134 (3) (c) and (5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby 

(i)  in the preparation of the annual accounts 
for the year ended March 31, 2024, the 
applicable accounting standards had 
been followed and there were no material 
departures from the same;

(ii)   the Directors had selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 

for that period;

  the 
care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv)    the Directors had prepared the annual 
accounts on a going concern basis;

Directors’ Report (contd.)
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(v)    the Directors had devised proper systems 
to ensure compliance with the provisions of 
all applicable laws and that such systems 

(e)   Fit and Proper Criteria & Code of Conduct:

All the Directors of the Company have 

criteria as prescribed in RBI Master Direction 
and RBI Scale Based Regulation.

The Company has received the requisite 
declarations and undertakings from all the 
Directors of the Company which have been 
taken on record and duly noted. 

During the year under review, the Company 
has complied with the applicable SS-1 
(Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board 
of Directors) and SS-2 (Secretarial Standard 
on General Meetings) issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India and approved by 
the Central Government under Section 118(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

(g) Independent Director:  

The Independent Directors have submitted 
the requisite declarations under Section 149(7) 

Section 149(6) of the Act that they qualify to 
be independent directors pursuant to the 
Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 

As on the date of this report, pursuant to 
Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the 

Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, the names 
of the Independent Directors of the Company 
have been included in the Independent 
Director’s databank maintained by the Indian 

It is the opinion of the Board that the 
Independent Directors possess relevant 

they hold the highest standards of integrity.

In terms of the Act, independent directors shall 

years on the Board of a company but shall 

be eligible for re-appointment on passing 
of a special resolution by the Company and 
disclosure of such appointment in the board’s 
report. The tenure of the independent directors 
is in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

12.  Change in the Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP):
During the period under review, Mr. Monil 
Kothari resigned as the Whole-time Company 
Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 31st May 2023. 
Further, Ms. Khwahish Rawal, was appointed 
as the Company Secretary and KMP of the 
Company w.e.f. 29th June 2023. She was 
designated as Head Compliance and Company 
Secretary w.e.f. 16th February 2024.

13. D
insurance (‘D&O policy’)
The Company has in place a D&O policy taken 
from TATA AIG General Insurance Company 
Limited which is renewed every year. It covers 
all the directors (including independent 
directors) of the Company and its subsidiary. 
The Board is of the opinion that quantum and 
risk presently covered is adequate.

14. Human Resources:
As on March 31, 2024, the total headcount of 
the Company stood at 158 (On Roll) employees, 
representing a 203 % increase from the previous 
year. This growth was driven by strategic hiring 
in key future growth areas such as Technology, 
Data and Analytics, Digital Platforms.

in 126 new hires, with a focus on enhancing 
our future capabilities in Data, Technology, 
Partnership Channel and D2C business. 

Recruitment strategies included leveraging 
social media platforms, partnership with 
universities, and employee referral programs.

15. Auditors:
(a) Appointment of Statutory Auditors:

M/s V.C. Shah & Co, Chartered Accountants, 
Mumbai having Firm Registration Number: 
109818W, were appointed as the Statutory 
Auditors by the Members of the Company at 
their First Annual General Meeting held on July 
3, 2023, from the conclusion of Annual General 
Meeting to the conclusion of the Annual General 
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March 31, 2028.  M/s V.C. Shah & Co, Chartered 
Accountants have audited several NBFCs and 
other companies in the Banking and Financial 
Services sector.

The provisions of Section 204 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 regarding the Secretarial 
Audit are not applicable to the Company during 
the year under review.

(c) Internal Auditors:

The Provisions of Section 138 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 regarding the Internal Audit are not 
applicable to the Company during the year 
under review.

The objective of Internal Audit is to identify, 
assess and mitigate risks as well as to evaluate 
and contribute to the systems of internal 
controls and governance processes followed 

Governance and Compliance practice, the 
Company voluntarily appointed M/s. Ernst & 
Young LLP as the Internal Auditor for Financial 
Year 2023-24. 

The Audit Committee of the Company reviewed 
the Internal Audit Report and the adequacy and 

and taken the corrective and preventive 

The report issued by the M/s V.C. Shah & Co, 
Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements 

March 31, 2024, forms part of this Annual 
report. 

or adverse remarks made by the Statutory 
Auditors in its report.

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to 
the Audit Committee or the Board during the 
year under review.

16.
related parties:
The Board of Directors of the Company has 
formulated a policy on dealing with Related 
Party Transactions, pursuant to the applicable 
provisions of the Act and RBI Master Directions. 
The same is displayed on the website of the 
Company at https://www.ecofy.co.in/policies-
disclosures .

All related party transactions are placed before 
the Audit Committee. During the year under 
review, the related party transactions that were 
entered into by the Company were on an arm’s 
length basis and in ordinary course of business. 
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) read with Rule 
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
there are no related party transactions that are 
required to be reported under Section 188(1) of 
the Act, as prescribed in Form AOC-2.

The details of transactions with Related Parties 
are given in the Notes to the accompanying 
Financial Statements.

17. E

There were no material changes and commitments 

which have occurred between the end of the 

18.  Material changes and 

Company:
There have been no material changes and 

of the Company which have occurred between 

the date of the report.

19.

the going concern status and 
Company’s operations in future:

orders passed by the regulators or courts or 
tribunals impacting the going concern status 
and the Company’s operations in future.

Directors’ Report (contd.)
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20. Annual Return:
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 
134(3) (a) of the Act, the Annual Return as 
on March 31, 2024, will be available on the 
Company’s website at https://www.ecofy.co.in/. 

21.
(hereinafter referred to as ‘CSR’)
During the year under review, the provisions of 
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable to the Company.

22. Cost records and cost audit
The maintenance of cost records and 
requirement of cost audit as prescribed 
under the provisions of Section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable for the 
business activities carried out by the Company 
during the year under review.

23.  Particulars of Loans, Guarantees 

Pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 11(2) of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, 
the loan made, guarantee given, or security 
provided in the ordinary course of business 
by a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) 
registered with Reserve Bank of India are 
exempt from the applicability of provisions of 
Section 186 of the Act. 

The details of the Loans given, and Investments 
made by the Company are furnished under 
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31st March 2024.

24. L

(` in lakh)

Particulars
ended March 31, 2024 ended March 31, 2023

Directors and their relatives Nil Nil

Entities associated with the Directors and their relatives Nil Nil
Nil Nil

25.  Internal Financial Control and 
their adequacy:

down a set of standards; processes and structure 
which enables to implement Internal Financial 
controls across the organisation with reference 
to Financial Statements and that such controls 

During the year under review, no material or 
serious observation(s) have been observed in 
relation to such controls. 

26.
The Company has established a vigil 
mechanism to deal with instances of fraud and 
mismanagement and to provide appropriate 
avenues to the directors and employees to 
report genuine concerns about unethical 
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud and to 
bring to the attention of the management, 
their genuine concerns and grievances about 
the behaviour of the employees. Adequate 
safeguards are provided against victimization 
of those who avail of the mechanism and direct 
access to the Audit Committee in exceptional 
cases is provided to them.

During the period under review, no cases 
under this mechanism were reported to the 
Company.

The policy on Whistleblower is also available 
on the website of the Company at https://www.
ecofy.co.in/policies-disclosures. 

27. D
Harassment of Women at 

 
Act, 2013
The Company has zero tolerance for sexual 
harassment at workplace and has adopted a 
Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal 
of sexual harassment at workplace in line with 
the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder for prevention and redressal of 
complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. 

The Company has complied with the 
provisions relating to the constitution of 
Internal Complaints Committee under the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
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(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee 
is as follows:

Designation

1. Ms. Rajashree Nambiar

2. Mr. Govind Sankaranarayanan  Member

3. Mr. Anujeet Kudva Member

4. Ms. Amishi Patel Member

5. Ms. Kanti Joshi NGO Member

Directors’ Report (contd.)

pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013 and Rules framed thereunder are as follows:

 
as on April 1, 2023 during the year during the year

 
as on March, 31, 2024

NIL NIL NIL NIL

28.  Statement on remuneration of 
employees of the Company:

Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMPs and other 
employees, formulated in terms of Companies 
Act, 2013. 

The said policy can be accessed at the following web 
link: https://www.ecofy.co.in/themes/cleantech/
policies/nomination-and-remuneration-policy.pdf 

In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the reports 
and accounts are being sent to the members and 
others entitled thereto, excluding the information 
on employees’ particulars which is available for 
inspection by the members at the Registered 

working days of the Company up to the date of 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

If any member is interested in inspecting the 
same, such member may write to the Company in 
advance at notices@ecofy.co.in.

29.

Earnings and Outgo:
The disclosures to be made under Section 134 (3) 
(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 

8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
are explained as under:

(a) Co

(i)  Steps taken or impact on Conservation of 
Energy:

  The Company is promoting Electric Vehicle 
scheme for employees which encourages 
employees to purchase electric 4-wheeler 
vehicles. The Company is also constantly 
striving towards maintaining and installing 

ensure conservation of energy;

(ii)  Steps taken by your Company for utilizing 
alternate sources of energy:

  The Company is also in the process of 
identifying cheaper power sources in order 
to further reduce the energy consumption;

(iii)  Capital investment on energy conservation 
equipment: 

  The Company is constantly undertaking 

and promote the use of renewable energy 

  
no capital investments on energy 
conservation equipment’s were made.
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The Company has consistently adopted advanced 
information technology and tools to improve the 
customer, partners and FOS experience. The 
Company is streamlining business processes 
through digitization, saving borrowers time. By 
utilizing digital channels for communication, we 
enhance customer retention and ensure more 
consistent on-time payments.

  the 
absorption;

a. D  Ecofy has introduced 
digital journeys for all its products, with 
several customer journeys fully digitized 

approach allows customers to complete 
their loan applications in under 10 minutes. 
By leveraging the India Stack, the process 
facilitates seamless KYC and e-Mandate 
setup through e-NACH and UPI Autopay, 

Key features include integration with 
NSDL, CKYC, DigiLocker, etc for quick 

inclusion of a bank statement analyser 
with a Business Rules Engine (BRE) 
enables real-time credit decision-making. 
Additionally, the process incorporates 
e-Stamping and e-Signing, providing a 
streamlined and intuitive application 
experience for customers.

b.  Ecofy has launched a 
customer portal designed to empower users 
with self-service capabilities. The portal is 
thoughtfully constructed to provide features 
most essential to customers. Through 
the portal, customers can view their loan 
account details and overdue, download all 
loan-related documents, and make real-
time EMI or overdue payments. Additionally, 
customers can raise service requests, which 
are promptly sent to customer service agents 
for resolution. In the six months following 

traction, with 22% of our customer base 
registered and actively using it. 

  the 
improvement, cost reduction, product 
development or import substitution

a.  Digital Journey – 90% of the cases are 
being sanctioned digitally.

b.  Customer Portal – 22% of the customer 
bases registered with INR 7mn worth of 
payments done in 6 months post launch.

iii.  In case of imported technology (imported 
during the last three years reckoned from 

Applicable

Following are the details of the foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo during the year 
under review: 

(` in lakh)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

Foreign Exchange Earnings Nil Nil

Foreign Exchange Outgo 14.14 24.69

30.  A statement indicating 

of a risk management policy 
The Board of Directors have adopted a policy 

on business and development of policies 
and strategies for evaluation of risk and its 
mitigation measures followed by monitoring 
of the approach. This policy describes an 
approach to the management of risk and the 
risk culture that the Company wishes to sustain. 

These include - Balancing Risk and Return, 
Responsibility, Accountability, Anticipation, and 
Sustaining Competitive Advantage. It covers 
principles of risk management, risk governance 
with roles and responsibilities, business 
control measures, principle risks and business 
continuity plan. The Board of Directors of 
the Company accordingly has formed a Risk 
Management Committee to frame, implement 
and monitor the risk management plan for the 
Company. The Committee is responsible for 
monitoring and reviewing the risk management 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
(Erstwhile Accretive Cleantech Finance Private Limited) 

CIN : U65990MH2022PTC378560

 
Co-founder, Wholetime Director & COO 
DIN :  01951880

 
Co-founder, Managing Director & CEO 
DIN :  06932632 

Place :  Mumbai 
Date  :  August 7, 2024

Directors’ Report (contd.)

31.
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016:
There was no proceeding initiated or pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during 
the year under review.

32.
There were no instances of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution during the year 
under review.

33. Credit Ratings, if any:
The Company has the following credit rating:

Credit Rating Agency Instrument/ Facilities  
as on May 15, 2024

1.

CRISIL Ratings

Proposed Long Term Bank Loan Facility. CRISIL BBB+/Stable

2. Term Loan CRISIL BBB+/Stable

3. Working Capital Demand Loan CRISIL BBB+/Stable

May 15, 2024. The Credit rating is valid for one year from the date of issuance.

34. Capital Adequacy Ratio:
(` in lakh)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated Standalone Consolidated

As at March 
31, 2024

As at March 
31, 2024

As at March 
31, 2023

As at March 
31, 2023

Tier I Capital 40,367.77 40,367.78 24,529.06 24,529.06

Tier II Capital 736.09 736.09 38.88 38.88

41,103.86 41,103.87 24,567.94 24,567.94

Risk weighted assets 51,203.64 51,203.64 25,570.57 25,570.57

Tier I CRAR 78.84% 78.84% 95.93% 89.78%

Tier II CRAR 1.44% 1.44% 0.15% 0.15%

CRAR (Tier l + Tier ll) 80.28% 80.28% 96.08% 96.08%

35.

of India, Shareholders, Financial Institutions, Bankers, Stakeholders, Employees, Senior Managements and 
Business Associates for their continued support and faith in the Company. 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
(Erstwhile Accretive Cleantech Finance Private Limited) 

CIN : U65990MH2022PTC378560

 
Co-founder, Wholetime Director & COO 
DIN :  01951880

 
Co-founder, Managing Director & CEO 
DIN :  06932632 

Place :  Mumbai 
Date  :  August 7, 2024

Particulars Amount (` In Lakh)

1 Name of Subsidiary Company Autovert Technologies Pvt Ltd
2 Reporting period Year ended March 31, 2024
3

of foreign subsidiaries
 - 

4 Share Capital 4.69
5 Reserves & Surplus (424.49)
6 Total Assets 624.00
7 Total Liabilities(i) 624.00
8 Investments -
9 Turnover(ii) 285.92
10 (350.54)
11 Provision for Taxation (1.00)
12 (349.54)
13 Proposed Dividend -
14 % of Shareholding 100%

        Notes: (i)  Total liabilities are inclusive of share capital and reserves. 
            (ii) Turnover includes other income and other operating revenue.

Part “B”: Associates
Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies  

o. Particulars Amount (` In Lakh)

1 Name of Associate Not Applicable
2 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date Not Applicable
3 Shares of Associates held by the company on the year end Amount of 

Investment in Associate
Not Applicable

4 Extend of Holding % Not Applicable
5 Not Applicable
6 Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated Not Applicable
7 Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet Not Applicable
8 Not Applicable

i. Considered in Consolidation Not Applicable
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation Not Applicable
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements 
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind 

Ecofy Finance Private 
Limited (formerly known as Accretive Cleantech 
Finance Private Limited) (the “Company”), which 

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with 

Other Information

Responsibilities of Management and Those 
Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind 
AS Financial Statements

TO THE MEMBERS OF ECOFY FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ACCERTIVE CLEANTECH 
FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED)
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

 

 

 

 C

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 

 

bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

 A

Annexure A

 A

 

 

 T

 

 

 T

 T

th

th

 

 

 

 T

 T

 T

  T

individually or in the aggregate) have 
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    T

either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been received by the Company 

    

(a) and (b) above, contain any material 

 T

 T

 

V. C. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Viral. J. Shah 
Partner  

 

Place :  
Date  : 
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     T

    T

  

  T
property and accordingly, reporting under 

  T

  A

   T

 b)  In our opinion and according to the 

   T

   

   

   

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

 Standalone Independent Auditor’s Report (contd.)
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   T

   

 T

 A

 T

 

    

   T

   A

 A
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   T

   A

or any government authority or any other 

   A

   A

   A

   A

   T

   

   

carried out in accordance with the generally 

been noticed or reported during the year, nor 

   

   A

 T

 A

 

 Standalone Independent Auditor’s Report (contd.)
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 A

   A

th

   A

   T

   A

 T
aggregating to `

`

 T

 

report and we neither give any guarantee nor 

   

V. C. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Viral. J. Shah 
Partner  

 

Place :  
Date  : 



Ecofy Finance Private Limited
Annual report 2023-24

76

Standalone Balance Sheet

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Note 
No.

As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

ASSETS
1. Financial assets

 
Receivable

   (I) Trade receivable

Total Financial Assets  51,033.07  24,918.00 
 

 

Total Non-Financial Assets  3,353.26  1,912.11 
TOTAL ASSETS  54,386.33  26,830.11 
II LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
 LIABILITIES
1. Financial assets

 

Total Financial Liabilities  11,900.30  1,595.64 
 

 

Total Non Financial Liabilities  259.70  112.49 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  12,160.00  1,708.13 
3. Equity

Equity
 

TOTAL EQUITY  42,226.33  25,121.98 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  54,386.33  26,830.11 

 
 V. C. Shah & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Ecofy Finance Private Limited  

Viral. J. Shah 
Partner  

Rajashree Nambiar 
Co-founder, Managing Director & CEO 

 

Govind Sankaranarayanan 
Co-founder, Wholetime Director & COO 

Place :  
Date  : 

Khwahish Rawal 
Company Secretary
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Standalone Statement of 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Note 
No.

 For the Year ended  
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended  
March 31, 2023 

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

 

Total revenue from operations  3,316.76  185.20 

Total income  3,342.66  215.86 
Expenses

Total expenses  7,813.06  2,647.29 
    (4,470.40)  (2,431.43)

Tax Expense:
Current tax

 
Total tax expenses
Total expenses  (1,163.71)  (553.41)

 or  y     (3,306.69)  (1,878.02)
Other comprehensive income

          
 

Subtotal (B)  0.44  -   
          

 

Subtotal (C)
   or  y   (  o   (  = (  + (  0.44  -   

    or  y     +  (3,306.25)  (1,878.02)
Earnings per equity share (face value of ` 10 each)

`)  (0.90)  (3.34)
`)  (0.90)  (3.34)

 
 V. C. Shah & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Ecofy Finance Private Limited  

Viral. J. Shah 
Partner  

Rajashree Nambiar 
Co-founder, Managing Director & CEO 

 

Govind Sankaranarayanan 
Co-founder, Wholetime Director & COO 

Place :  
Date  : 

Khwahish Rawal 
Company Secretary
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flow Statement

(` in Lakh)
Particulars  For the Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
 For the period ended 

March 31, 2023 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

     (4,470.40)  (2,431.43)
Adjustments for: 

 

   w    (4,489.04)  (2,148.65)
Change in working capital:

Cash (used in) operating activities  (38,413.47)  (3,316.05)

Net cash (used in) operating activities (A)  (38,420.18)  (3,319.84)
  w    : 

 
            10,531.09  (22,747.71)

  w    : 

 

       28,642.02  26,730.36 
          752.93  662.82 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period  662.82  -   
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  1,415.76  662.82 
Components of cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL  1,415.76  662.82 

 
 V. C. Shah & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Ecofy Finance Private Limited  

Viral. J. Shah 
Partner  

Rajashree Nambiar 
Co-founder, Managing Director & CEO 

 

Govind Sankaranarayanan 
Co-founder, Wholetime Director & COO 

Place :  
Date  : 

Khwahish Rawal 
Company Secretary
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Standalone Statement of changes in equity 

A. Equity Share Capital

(` in Lakh)
Particulars  As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023 
Equity share of ` 10 each 
Balance at the beginning of the year 

Restated balance as at the beginning of the year 

       y     42,600  27,000 

B. Instruments in the nature of equity

(` in Lakh)
Particulars  As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023 
0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference shares of ` 10 
each, fully paid-up 
Balance at the beginning of the year 

Restated balance as at the beginning of the year 

       y     4,500  -   

C. Other equity
 As at March 31, 2023 

(` in Lakh)
Particulars Reserves & Surplus

Total Statutory 
  

45-IC 

Securities 
Premium

Stock option 
outstanding 

account 

Retained 
Earnings

 -   

  -   

Restated balances at April 1, 2022  -   

(1,878.02)

 -   

Balance as at March 31, 2023  -    -    -   (1,878.02) (1,878.02)

Restated balances at April 1, 2023 (1,878.02) (1,878.02)

 (3,306.69)

 0.44 

 -   

 366.14 

 (55.54)

Balance as at March 31, 2024  -    -    366.14 (5,239.82) (4,873.67)
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements  

3. Cash and cash equivalents 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

CASH ON HAND 

Total  1,415.76  662.82 

4. Loans 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

(A) 
Loans at amortised cost 

Total Gross Loans  37,033.00  1,473.45 

Total Net Loans  36,290.97  1,434.57 
(B) 

Secured by property 
Secured by machinery 

Total Gross Loans  37,033.00  1,473.45 

Total - Net Loans 36290.97  1,434.57 
C. Location wise 
a. Loans in India

Total Gross Loans  37,033.00  1,473.45 

Total - Net (a)  36,290.97  1,434.57 
b. Loans outside India (b)  -    -   
 T  -   36,290.97  1,434.57 

` `
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5. Investments 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Investments - at FVTPL  11,742.29  21,262.93 

Investments - at FVOCI  -    -   
Investments - at Deemed cost*  1,500.02  1,500.02 

Total Net Investments  13,242.31  22,762.95 

Total – Gross Investments  13,242.31  22,762.95 

Total – Net Investments  13,242.31  22,762.95 

*Note :  The company has acquired the Autovert Technologies Private Limited on November 18, 2022. The Purchase 
consideration paid by the company is 1,415.26 lakhs to the owners of Autovert Technologies Private Limited and also 
company has infused Additional equity shares of ` 84.74 lakhs during FY-23 and has shown as Investment in subsidiary.

   
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Total  84.03  57.65 

7. Current tax assets (net) 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

` `

Total  10.51  3.79 
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8. Deferred tax assets (net) 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets 
     on   - 

 
Total (A)  1,780.30  560.43 
Deferred tax liabilities

     on   - 

 

Total (B)  63.34  7.03 
Deferred tax assets (net) (A-B)  1,716.97  553.41 

9.  A. Property, plant and equipment 
FY 2023-24 (` in Lakh)
Particulars Gross block  Depreciation and Amortisation Net block 

 Opening 
as at 
April  

01, 2023 

Addition Deletion  Closing 
as at 
Mar  

31, 2024 

 Opening 
as at 
April  

01, 2023 

  
Adjustment 

 For 
the 

period 

 Closing 
as at 
Mar  

31, 2024 

 Closing 
as at 
Mar  

31, 2024 

Property, plant and 
equipments (a) 

 

 
 

 
 

Total 1,290.76  231.03  -    1,521.78  90.19  -   315.95  406.14  1,115.65 

Sub-total  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Intangible Assets (b) 

Total  -    70.71  -    70.71  -    -    1.28  1.28  64.11 

development 
Total  13.89  17.70  -    31.59  -    -    -    -    31.59 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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B. Period 2022-23 (` in Lakh)
Particulars Gross block  Depreciation and Amortisation Net block 

 Opening 
as at 
Mar  

17, 2022 

Addition Deletion  Closing 
as at 
Mar  

31, 2023 

 Opening 
as at 
Mar  

17, 2022 

  
Adjustment 

 For 
the 

period 

 Closing 
as at 
Mar  

31, 2023 

 Closing 
as at 
Mar  

31, 2023 

Property, plant and 
equipments (a) 

Sub-total  -   1,290.76  -   1,290.76  -    -    89.66  90.19 1,200.57 

Sub-total  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Intangible Assets (b) 

Sub-total  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

development 
Sub-total  -    13.89  -    13.89  -    -    -    -    13.89 
Total -   -   -    1,214.46 

 C. Capital Work in Progress aging
As at March 31, 2024 (` in Lakh)

Particulars

 Less 
than 1 

year 

 1-2 
years 

 2-3 
years 

 more 
than 3 
years 

 Total 

 

As at March 31, 2023 (` in Lakh)

Particulars

 Less 
than 1 

year 

 1-2 
years 

 2-3 
years 

 more 
than 3 
years 

 Total 

 

 D. Intangible asset under development aging
As at March 31, 2024 (` in Lakh)

Particulars

 Less 
than 1 

year 

 1-2 
years 

 2-3 
years 

 more 
than 3 
years 

 Total 

 

As at March 31, 2023 (` in Lakh)

Particulars

 Less 
than 1 

year 

 1-2 
years 

 2-3 
years 

 more 
than 3 
years 

 Total 

  13.89 
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(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 Advance to Supplier 

 

Total  414.44  140.46 

11. Trade payables
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Trade payables

Total  1.44  73.38 

 Aging of trade payables as on March 31, 2024:
(` in Lakh)

Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the due  
date of payment

Less 
than 6 

months

6 
Months 
- 1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

Total

 -   
 1.44 

 -   
 -   

Total  1.44  -    -    -    -    1.44 

 Aging of trade payables as on March 31, 2023:
(` in Lakh)

Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the due  
date of payment

Less 
than 6 

months

6 
Months 
- 1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

Total

Total  73.38  -    -    -    -    73.38 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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 Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

  T

 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 T  

 T  

 T  

 T
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during 

 

 T  

 T
accounting period

 

 T  

The balance of MSMED parties as at the end of the period - -

12. Borrowings (other than debt securities)
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

(a) Term loans

(b) Loans repayable on demand

Total  8,699.21  -   

Total  8,699.21  -   
Secured

Total  8,699.21  -   
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 Terms of repayment of the term loans
 T

(` in Lakh)
Repayment within 
(Payable in monthly instalments)

0-12 months 12-24 months 24-36 
months

36-60 
months

Total

For Banks :

For Other Parties :

Total  4,250.00  2,000.00  1,250.00  1,250.00  8,750.00 

 Security and other terms of the loans are as follows :

 

  T

  T

  T

  

  
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Others payables :

Total  3,199.65  1,522.26 

   by  AS 116 -  
 (A) Lease liability movement

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Opening Balance

Balance at the end of the period  967.53  1,076.89 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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    y  

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

    Y  

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

    or   

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 (D)  Maturity analysis of lease liability

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

14. Provisions
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 Total   101.42  44.34 

  
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 Total  158.28  68.15 
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16. Equity 
 A. Details of authorised, issued and subscribed share capital :

(` in Lakh)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

A. Authorised capital
`

`

Total  Authorised capital  500,000,000  50,000.00  400,000,000  40,000.00 
B. Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

I) Equity Shares
`

Total  Equity  426,000,000  42,600.00  270,000,000  27,000.00 
II) Instruments in the nature of equity

`
 

Total  Instruments in the nature of equity  45,000,000  4,500.00  -    -   
Total  Authorised capital  471,000,000  47,100.00  270,000,000  27,000.00 

 B.  Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning 
       

 B.1. Equity Shares 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

period

Outstanding at the end of the year  426,000,000  42,600.00  270,000,000  27,000.00 

 B.2.  Instruments in the nature of equity : 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference 
shares:

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

period
 

Outstanding at the end of the year  45,000,000  4,500.00  -    -   

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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 C.  Terms & Rights available to shareholders 
  C.1. Equity Shares

   T `

 

  C.2. 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference shares  

   T
`

 

 D.   Details of equity shares held by holding company and its subsidiaries 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares % of holding No. of Shares % of holding

Equity shares with voting rights

Total  374,999,999 88.03%  269,999,999 100%

 D.  Particulars of equity shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity share 
capital: 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares % of holding No. of Shares % of holding

 

Total  419,999,999 98.59%  269,999,999 100.00%
   

 E.  Disclosures of Shareholding of Promoters - Shares held by the Promoters 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares % of holding No. of Shares % of holding

 

Total  426,000,000 100.00%  270,000,000 100.00%
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 F.   A

 G.  

17. Other Equity 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

    45 IC   RBI A  1934  

 Total   (4,873.67)  (1,878.02)

A. (` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

   45 IC   RBI A  1934
 

Closing balance  -    -   

B. (` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Stock option outstanding account  

Closing balance  366.14  -   

C. (` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Retained earnings

Closing balance  (5,239.81)  (1,878.02)
  (4,873.67)  (1,878.02)

 D. Nature and purpose of reserves :
   45-IC   RBI A  1934

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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 Securities Premium Account

 Stock option outstanding account 

 Retained earnings 

 E. Details of dividend payment :
 i) To Equity shareholders

ii) To 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference shareholders

18. Interest income
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

At Amortised Cost: 

Total  1,969.24  31.08 

19. Net gain on fair value changes
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

  on       pr   
loss :-

Total  1,329.89  154.12 
Fair value changes:

Total  1,329.89  154.12 
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20. Fees and commission income
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

Fees and commission income 

Total  17.63  -   

21. Other income
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

 Total  25.90  30.66 

22. Finance costs
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

Interest Costs 
  on      

cost: 

  (a) Interest on borrowings  96.02  -   

  (b) Interest on lease liabilities  115.59  38.20 

  (c) Other interest expense   9.54  1.17 

 
Total  221.15  39.37 

23. Fees and commissions expenses
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

 Total  79.72  -   

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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 on  
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

 On       
  on   

 
 Total  741.47  38.88 

  
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

 Total  4,227.42  1,329.14 

26. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

Total  322.55  90.19 
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27. Other expenses
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

 Total  2,220.75  1,149.72 

 27.1. Payments to auditor
* Payments to auditor includes: (` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

 Total  16.40  8.40 

 27.2.  CSR Expenses   

  

28. Tax Expense
 28.1      

(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

Current tax expense
Current period

Total current tax expense (A) -  -   
      

Deferred tax expense (B)  1,163.71  553.41 
   or  y   1,163.71  553.41 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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 28.2      
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

         
Statutory tax rate

Tax using the Company's statutory tax rate (B)
  

 

income

Total tax expense  (1,163.56)  (553.41)
Current tax

 (1,163.56)  (553.41)
Total tax liability  (1,163.56)  (553.41)

   T  A   
FY 2023-24 (` in Lakh)

Particulars

Opening as at 
April 1, 2023

Recognised in 
P&L

Recognised 
in OCI

Closing as at  
March 31, 

2024

 

tax
  

Total  553.41  1,163.71  (0.16)  1,716.97 
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   T  A   
FY 2022-23 (` in Lakh)

Particulars

Opening as at 
April 1, 2023

Recognised in 
P&L

Recognised 
in OCI

Closing as 
at March 31, 

2024

 

 

tax

Total  -    553.41  -    553.41 

30. Capital
 30.1. Capital Management

 30.2  Regulatory capital
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2024 

 As at  
March 31, 2023 

    + T      41,103.86  24,567.94 
Risk weighted assets (Amt. in Lakhs)

1.44% 0.15%
CRAR   + T   % 80.28% 96.08%

 30.3. Liquidity Coverage Ratio 
 

31. Earnings Per share (EPS)
 

 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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 T

(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

  

`

`

*In view of losses during the current year and previous year, the options which are anti-dilutive have been ignored in 
the calculation of diluted earnings per share. Accordingly, there is no variation between basic and diluted earnings per 
share.

32. Segment Information
 

 S

33. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
 33.1 Contingent Liability

(` in Lakh)

Description of Contingent Liability  As at  
March 31, 2024 

As of  
31 March, 2023

Credit enhancement provided by the company (including corporate 

Corporate guarantee

 33.2 Capital and Other commitments

(` in Lakh)

Description of Capital and Other commitments  As at  
March 31, 2024 

 As at  
March 31, 2023 

30. ECL on Loans
 34.1.   
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 34.2. Probability of Default (PD)

 34.3. Loss Given Default (LGD)

 34.4. Exposure at Default (EAD)

 34.5. An analysis of changes in gross carrying amount as follows
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024

Category

Assets 
category

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount

Expected 
Credit Loss  

(Refer note 39)

Net 
Carrying 
Amount

PD (%)

Total  37,033.00  742.03  36,290.97 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023

Category

Assets 
category

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount

Expected 
Credit Loss  

(Refer note 39)

Net 
Carrying 
Amount

PD (%)

 

Total  1,473.45  38.88  1,434.57 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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 34.6. An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding 
ECL allowances in relation to loans:
As at March 31, 2024 (` in Lakh)

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying amount opening balance  1,473.45 
 64,126.83 

 (28,529.48)

 (104.57)
 93.39 

 11.18 

derecognition

 -   

 (37.79)
Gross carrying amount closing balance  36,928.43  93.39  11.18  37,033.00 

As at March 31, 2023 (` in Lakh)

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying amount opening balance
 1,707.38 
 (233.94)

 -   
 -   
 -   

derecognition

 -   

 -   
Gross carrying amount closing balance  1,473.45  -    -    1,473.45 

Note : Gross carrying amount does not include loan commitment of ` 1,929.45 lakhs.

 34.7. 
As at March 31, 2024 (` in Lakh)

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  Total 

ECL allowance - opening balances   38.88 
 714.71 

 -   

 (40.59)
 26.13 
 14.46 

Impact on period end ECL of exposures 
transferred between stages during the 
period

 713.00  26.13  14.46  753.59 

 11.56 
ECL allowance - closing balance  713.00  23.08  5.94  742.03 
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As at March 31, 2023 (` in Lakh)

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  Total 

ECL allowance - opening balances
  38.88 

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

Impact on period end ECL of exposures 
transferred between stages during the 
period

 38.88  -    -    38.88 

ECL allowance - closing balance  38.88  -    -    38.88 

35. Disclosure of transactions with related parties as required by Ind AS 24
 35.A. List of related parties

(` in Lakh)

Relationship Name of the Related Party

a) Holding Company
b) Subsidiary Company
c) Key Management Personnel

Company Secretary

35.B.  En            

a) ECUBE Investment Advisor Private Limited

b) Grovepike Associates

 35.C. Transactions with related parties 
(` in Lakh)

Nature of Transaction Description  For the Year  
ended March 31, 2024 

 For the period  
ended March 31, 2023 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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 35.C. Transactions with related parties 
(` in Lakh)

Nature of Transaction Nature of 
relationship

Name of the related 
party

 For the Year  
ended  

March 31, 2024 

 For the period  
ended  

March 31, 2023 

 A  

 

  

  

 35.D. Balances with related parties
(` in Lakh)

Nature of Transaction Nature of relationship Name of the related 
party

As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 

 Green Growth Equity 

 

 

 A  

 
 36.A.   
 T

`
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)

 36.B.   
 T

`

 R  A  h    :  

 

 Interest rate risk: 

 Salary Risk:

 Investment Risk: 

 Asset Liability Matching Risk: 

 Mortality risk: 

 T

 

 1. Changes in present value of obligations 
 (` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at 
 March 31, 2023

PVO at beginning of period  15.31  -   

PVO at end of period  56.15  15.31 
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 (` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at 
 March 31, 2023

 
 

 V    A  
 

 
 

 
 

  on  
 

7  A   on 

 

 V    A
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)

 (` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at 
 March 31, 2023

    r    b     
o   &   

 

 A       (56.15)  (15.31)
11        P & L

 

12 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

13        
 

Contribution paid

14 Schedule III of The Companies Act 2013

15 Projected Service Cost March 31, 2025

Assumptions as at As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
 March 31, 2023
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(` in Lakh)

Sensitivity Analysis As at  
March 31, 2024

As at 
 March 31, 2023

DR: Discount Rate

ER: Salary Escalation Rate

Expected Payout
Year  Payouts 

 T

 T

 Accumulated Compensated Absences

 T
`  

`

37. Fair values
 

 

 37.1 Fair Value Hierarchy
 T

 T
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)

   T

   T

   T

   T

 37.2.  V          
As at March 31, 2024  (` in Lakh)

Particulars Fair value measurement using

Carrying 
Value

Quoted prices  
in  active  

markets - Level 1

  
observable  

inputs - Level 2

  
unobservable  

inputs - Level 3

Total

Financial Assets
 11,742.29 

Total  11,742.29  11,742.29  -    11,742.29 

As at March 31, 2022 (` in Lakh)

Particulars Fair value measurement using

Carrying 
Value

Quoted prices  
in active  

markets - Level 1

  
observable  

inputs - Level 2

  
unobservable  

inputs - Level 3

Total

Financial Assets
 21,262.93 

Total  21,262.93  21,262.93  -    -    21,262.93 
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 37.3. Fair value of Financial Instrument Recognition
 Financial instrument by category

 T  

(` in Lakh)

Particulars
Amortised 

cost
FVTPL FVOCI Total carrying 

amount

Financial asset
 1,415.76 

 -   
 36,290.97 

  13,242.31 
 84.03 

Total  39,290.78  11,742.29  -    51,033.07 
Financial Liability

  1.44 
 -   

 8,699.21 
 3,199.65 

Total  11,900.30  -    -    11,900.30 

 T

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Amortised 
cost

FVTPL FVOCI Total carrying 
amount

Financial asset
 662.82 

  -   
 1,434.57 

 22,762.95 
  57.65 

Total  3,655.06  21,262.93  -    24,918.00 
Financial Liability

  73.38 
  -   
  -   
  1,522.26 

Total  1,595.64  -    -    1,595.64 
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)

 37.4. Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

ASSETS
Financial assets

  1,415.76  662.82 
 -    -   

 -    -   
Trade Receivable  -    -   

 36,290.97  1,434.57 
 13,242.31  22,762.95 

 84.03   57.65 
Total Financial Assets  31,427.22  19,605.85  51,033.07  22,604.91  2,313.08  24,918.00 

 
  10.51  3.79 

 1,716.97  553.41 
 198.84  109.37 
 916.81  1,091.19 

 -    -   
 31.59  13.89 
 64.11  -   

 414.44  140.46 
Total Non-Financial Assets  668.26  2,685.00  3,353.26  140.46  1,771.66  1,912.12 
TOTAL ASSETS  32,095.49  22,290.85  54,386.34  22,745.37  4,084.74  26,830.11 
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables

A. Trade payables  -    -   
  

  1.44   -   

B. Other payables  -    73.38 
  -    -   

  -    -   

 -    -   
 8,699.21  -   
 3,199.65  1,522.26 

Total Financial Liabilities  6,633.18  5,267.12  11,900.30  682.60  913.04  1,595.64 
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(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

 
 -   

 101.42  44.34 
 -    -   

 158.28  68.15 
Total Non Financial Liabilities  177.21  82.48  259.70  68.26  44.23  112.49 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  6,810.40  5,349.60  12,160.00  750.86  957.27  1,708.13 

38. Financial Risk Management objectives and policies
 R

 T

 T

 

 

 

 

 

 

 T
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)

     

Nature of 
Risk 

Due to Framework Monitoring 

 

 

their repayment  

Company

management 
committee 

  

  

  

currency and 

Committee 

  

  

people and 

Committee (AC)

  

  

  

inability to 

or repayment 

Committee 
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 38.A Exposure to Capital Market
 T

 38.B Exposure to liquidity risk
 T

As at March 31, 2024 (` in Lakh)

Particulars   

Carrying 
amount

0 - 1 year 1 - 3 years 3 - 5 
years

> 5 years

Financial liabilities
 

Total  11,900.30  6,711.97  3,825.71  1,362.63  -   
Financial Assets

 

 

Total  51,033.07  13,174.42  16,864.85  19,493.79  1,500.02 

As at March 31, 2023 (` in Lakh)

Particulars   

Carrying 
amount

0 - 1 year 1 - 3 years 3 - 5 
years

> 5 years

Financial liabilities
 

Total  1,595.64  682.60  432.91  480.13  -   
Financial Assets

 

Total  24,918.00  22,604.91  740.37  71.12  1,501.60 

 T
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 38.C Market risk (interest risk)
 T

 Market risk (interest risk)

 T

(` in Lakh)

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Financial assets

Total  48,033.27  22,697.50 
Financial liabilities

Total  8,699.21  -   

 Fair value sensitivity analysis for Floating-rate instruments

 T

 

 (` in Lakh)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Liabilities Side
100 bps 

higher
100 bps 

lower
100 bps 

higher
100 bps 

lower

 

Total  (3.16)  3.16  -    -   

39 Employee Stock Option Scheme
 T

 

 39.A Equity Settled
 T

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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(` in Lakh)

Particulars

Number 
of Options 

Granted

Grant 
Date

Vesting Conditions and 
Vesting Period

Exercise 
Price  
(in `)

Weighted average fair 
value of the options 

at grant date (in `)

parameter

parameter

 Fair value of share options granted 

 T

Inputs in to the pricing model 

Particulars ESOP Scheme 2023 - Tranche 1 ESOP Scheme 2023 - Tranche 2

* The risk-free interest rate being considered for the calculation is the interest rate applicable for maturity equal to the 

continuously compounded rates of return on the stock over a period of time. since each vest has been considered as a 

Inputs in to the pricing model 

Particulars ESOP 2023 - Tranche 1 ESOP 2023 - Tranche 2
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 39.B Summary of share based payments:
(` in Lakh)

Particulars
ESOP 2023 - 

Tranche 1
ESOP 2023 - 

Tranche 2
Total

 Outstanding balance at the beginning of the period  -    -    -   

 Options outstanding at the end of the period  38,432,550  680,000  39,112,550 
 Options exercisable at the end of the period  -    -    -   

40. Regulatory disclosures - RBI
 T

 T

 40.1. Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR)#   
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Tier I Capital

Tier II Capital
    + T   41,103.86  24,567.94 

Tier I CRAR
Tier II CRAR

80.28% 96.08%

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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 40.2 Investments
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

1) Value of Investments

     
amortisation on investments

 

Closing balance  -    -   

 40.3. Derivatives
 T

 40.4 Unhedged foreign currency exposure
 T

 40.5.       
 T  

 40.6.        Group    

 T

 40.7. Unsecured advances
 T

 40.8.Details of ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings 
during the period.

Rating Agency Programme Ratings assigned 

Corporate Credit rating

 T
`
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 40.9 Draw Down from Reserves 
 

 40.10 Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators 
 T

  40.11         
  

 40.12     
 T

  40.13 Participation in currency futures & currency options 
  T

 40.14   or  or          
policies 

 T

 40.15 Revenue recognition 

 T

 40.16     
 T

 40.17        

Particulars Regulator Registration No.

i)

 40.18 Remuneration of non-executive Directors 
 ` `

 

 40.19 Provisions and contingencies 
 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year  
ended March 31, 2024 

 For the period  
ended March 31, 2023 

  

 

  

 

 
 A

* Represents impairment loss allowance on stage 3 assets.
** Represents impairment loss allowance on stage 1 and stage 2 assets.

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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 40.20 Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2024

A. Concentration of advances

B. Concentration of exposures

C. Concentration of NPAs

D. Sector-wise NPA Assets

 (` in Lakh)

Sectors % of NPA assets to Total Advances in that sector

As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2024

 A
 

 

 R

 R
Total 0.05% 0.00%

 D. Concentration of deposits
 T

 40.21 Movement of NPAs (Stage 3 Assets) 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

i)  Net NPAs to net advances (%)

ii)    Movement of NPAs (Gross)

 

d) Closing balance  11.18  -   
iii) Movement of net NPA

 

d) Closing balance  5.24  -   
iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs

 

d) Closing balance  5.94  -   
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 40.22 Intra-group exposures 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

i)  Total amount of intra-group exposures  2,330.34  1,766.49 

ii)    Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures  2,330.34  1,766.49 

iii)   

 40.23  In A     -   To  
R         DOR.ACC.REC. 
No.20     19  2022.  

 A.  T

  

 B  A

  

 40.24 Disclose of all instances of breach of covenant of loan availed or debt 
securities issued. 

 T

 40.25 Disclosure on Frauds Pursuant to RBI Master Direction 
  ` `

 40.26 Advances Against Intangible Securities 
 T

 40.27 Overseas Assets (For Those With Joint Ventures And Subsidiaries Abroad) 
 T

 40.28   
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year  
ended March 31, 2024 

 For the period  
ended March 31, 2023 

  

  

  

 40.29 Disclosure for Non STC Securitisation Transaction (STC - Simple, transparent, 
and comparable) 

 T

 40.30 Disclosure for STC Securitisation Transactions (STC - Simple, transparent, 
and comparable) 

 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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 40.31 Details of transfer through Assignment in respect of loans (not in default) 
 T

 40.32 Details of loans (not in default) acquired through assignment 
 

 40.33 Disclosure of complaints  
Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the  

   
(` in Lakh)

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

A   Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers

  

 
 

   
4.  Number of complaints pending at the end of the year  

B   M   r  by  C   
of Ombudsman

 

  

  

  

  

  

40. Regulatory disclosures - RBI

 40.34 Top      by    
 As at March 31, 2024

Grounds of Complaints Number of 
complaints 

pending at the 
beginning of 

the year

Number of 
complaints 

received during 
the year

%   
in the number of 

complaints received 
over the previous 

year

Number of 
complaints 
pending at 
the end of 

the year

Of 5, number 
of complaints 

pending 
beyond 30 

days

 

Total  -    62  -    4  -   
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)

As at March 31, 2023

Grounds of Complaints Number of 
complaints 

pending at the 
beginning of 

the year

Number of 
complaints 

received during 
the year

%   
in the number of 

complaints received 
over the previous 

year

Number of 
complaints 
pending at 
the end of 

the year

Of 5, number 
of complaints 

pending 
beyond 30 

days

 
Total  -    1  -   

 40.35 Asset Liability Management - maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
As at March 31, 2024 (` in Lakh)

Particulars Over 1  
days  
to 7 

days

Over  8  
days  
to 14 
days

Over 15  
days to  
30 days

Over 1  
Month 

to 2 
Months

Over 2  
Months to 
3 Months

Over 3  
Months 

to 6  
Months

Over 6  
Months  

to 1 Year

Over 1  
Year to 3  

Years 

Over 3  
Years to  
5 Years

Over 5  
Years

Total

  -   
 

36,260.73 
 772.27 

 13,242.31 
 

(other than 
 8,699.08 

  -   

As at March 31, 2023 (` in Lakh)

Particulars Over 1  
days to  
7 days

Over  8  
days to  
14 days

Over 15  
days to  
30 days

Over 1  
Month 

to 2 
Months

Over 2  
Months to 
3 Months

Over 3  
Months to 
6 Months

Over 6  
Months  

to 1 Year

Over 1  
Year to 3  

Years 

Over 3  
Years 

to  
5 Years

Over 5  
Years

Total

  -   
 1,217.85 
 266.47 

21,262.93 
 

(other than 
 -   

 -   
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 40.36 Comparison of Regulatory Provision for NPA and Impairment Provision as per Ind AS
 As at March 31, 2024

(` in Lakh)

    RBI 
norms

Asset 
 

as per Ind AS 
109

Gross  
carrying 
amount 

as per Ind 
AS*

Loss 
allowances  
(provisions) 
as required  

under Ind 
109

Net 
carrying  
amount

Provisions 
required  

as  
per IRAC 

norms

 
between Ind  

AS 109 
provisions  
and IRAC 

norms

Performing assets
Standard

Non-performing assets (NPA)

 

Stage 1  39,012.72  713.00  38,299.72  92.71  620.29 

Total Stage 2  93.39  23.08  70.31  0.23  22.85 
Stage 3  11.18  5.94  5.24  1.12  4.83 

Total  39,117.30  742.03  38,375.27  94.06  647.97 
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)

 As at March 31, 2023

(` in Lakh)

    RBI 
norms

Asset 
 

as per Ind AS 
109

Gross  
carrying 
amount 

as per Ind 
AS*

Loss 
allowances  
(provisions) 
as required  

under Ind 
109

Net 
carrying  
amount

Provisions 
required  

as  
per IRAC 

norms

 
between Ind  

AS 109 
provisions  
and IRAC 

norms

Performing assets
Standard

 
Non-performing assets (NPA)

 

Stage 1  1,639.12  38.88  1,600.24  4.97  33.91 

Total Stage 2  -    -    -    -    -   
Stage 3  -    -    -    -    -   

Total  1,639.12  38.88  1,600.24  4.97  33.91 
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)

 40.38 Exposure to Real Estate sector
(` in Lakh)

Category FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

i) Direct Exposures

 

ii) Indirect Exposure

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector  -  - 

 40.39 Exposure to capital market
(` in Lakh)

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

  

in corporate debt
  A

iii)  A

iv)  A

v)  

vi)  

vii)  
viii)  

ix)  
x) 

(i) Category I
(ii) Category II
(iii) Category III

Total exposure to capital market  -  - 
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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 40 Regulatory disclosures - RBI
 40.41. Disclosure On Liquidity Risk Management Framework Pursuant To Reserve Bank Of India 

 RBI    M  D  D  D  
December 29, 2022.

 

 40.42. D  on    RBI  no. RBI  DOR  (  CC. 
N   N  04  2019 on  R  M   or 
Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies from March 31, 2023 onwards

 A.    on     
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at 
 March 31, 2023

Amount (`

 B. Top 20 large deposits

 

 C. Top 10 Borrowings 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at 
 March 31, 2023

`

 

`

 

 

 

 D.    on     
(` in Lakh)

Particulars

As at  
March 31, 2024

As at 
 March 31, 2023

` in lakh % of Total 
liabilities # ` in lakh % of Total 

liabilities #

# Total Liabilities represents total liabilities as per balance sheet less total  equity
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)

 E. Stock Ratios: 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at 
 March 31, 2023

i)  C
ii)  C
iii)  C
ii)  
v)  
vi)  
vii)   
viii)   
ix)   
x)   
xi)  
xii)   

# All the above numbers are including notional Ind AS adjustments.
##

Paper and NCDs
###

 40.43. A        
  -   –      

Financial Company – 
 Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

 Amount 
outstanding 

 Amount 
overdue 

 Total  Amount 
outstanding 

 Amount 
overdue 

 Total 

1)  Loans and advances availed by the non- 
    o  

interest accrued thereon but not paid:
 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 

(e) Commercial paper  - 
 - 
 - 

2)  Break-up of (1) (f) above [Outstanding 
public deposits inclusive of interest 
accrued thereon but not paid]
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(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

 Amount 
outstanding 

 Amount 
overdue 

 Total  Amount 
outstanding 

 Amount 
overdue 

 Total 

 - 
  - 

 - 
Assets side :
3)  Break-up of loans and advances 

including bills receivables [other than 
those included in (4) below] 

(a) Secured  1,473.45 
 - 

Total  37,033.00  -  37,033.00  1,473.45  -  1,473.45 

4)  Break up of Leased assets and stock on 
hire and other assets counting towards 
AFC activities

(i)  Lease assets including lease rentals 
under sundry debtors:

 - 
 - 

(ii)  Stock on hire including hire charges 
under sundry debtors:

 - 
 - 

(iii)  Other loans counting towards AFC 
activities

  - 

 - 
5) Break-up of investments :
Current investments :

1. Quoted
 - 

      - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

2. Unquoted  - 
 - 

      - 
 - 

21,262.93 
 - 
 - 
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 5) Break-up of investments : 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

 Amount 
outstanding 

 Amount 
overdue 

 Total  Amount 
outstanding 

 Amount 
overdue 

 Total 

Long term investments :
1. Quoted

 - 
      - 

 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 

2. Unquoted  - 
  -   

       -   
  -   
  -   
  -   

  1,500.02 

            

(` in Lakh)

Category Amount net of provision Amount net of provision 

 Secured  Unsecured   Total  Secured  Unsecured   Total 

1. Related Parties
 772.27  266.47 

 -    -   
 -    -   

2. Other than related parties  36,260.73  1,206.98 
 Total  37,033.00  -    37,033.00  1,473.45  -    1,473.45 

              
securities (both quoted and unquoted) 

(` in Lakh)

Category  Market 
  

Break up 
or fair 

value or 
NAV 

 Book Value 
(Net of 

provisions) 

 Total  Market 
  

Break up or 
fair value or 

NAV 

 Book Value 
(Net of 

provisions) 

 Total 

1. Related Parties
 1,500.02  1,500.02 

  -    -   
 -    -   

2. Other than related parties  11,742.29  21,262.93 
 Total  13,242.31  13,242.31  13,242.31  22,762.95  22,762.95  22,762.95 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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 8) Other Information 
(` in Lakh)

Category  Amount  Amount  Total  Amount  Amount  Total 

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

  -   
 A    -   

Notes:   

 
Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015 whichever is applicable.   

 
other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt.   

 
shares have been valued as per prevailing market standards. 

41.  A. Ratio analysis

(` in Lakh)

Particulars March 
31,2024

March 
31,2023

Remarks* %  
movement 

 
 

 

d)  Return on equity ratio 

year
e)  Inventory turnover ratio 

 T

 T
ratio 
 

 
and total revenue

 R
employed 
 R

Notes:   

  or      

A)  Current ratio represents total Financial assets / total Financial liabilities receivable / payable within 12 months (Refer 
note no.32)  
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b)  Debt-Equity ratio represents closing total debt / closing total net worth  

 

and advances  

 

e)  Inventory turnover ratio - Not applicable  

f)  Trade receivable turnover represents Revenue from operations / Average of opening and closing balances of Trade 
Receivables  

g)  Trade payables turnover ratio - Not applicable  

h)  Net capital turnover ratio represents total revenue / Average of opening and closing balances of net worth  

 

 

k)  Return on investment - Not applicable  

42. Events after reporting date  
 

43. Other Statutory Information  
 43.01 T

 43.02

 43.03
 

 43.04

 43.05 

 

 43.06 

 43.07  
 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements (contd.)
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 43.08 

 43.09 

 43.10 

 43.11 
 

  

   

 43.12 

   

    

 43.13 
 

            
Indian rupees (in lakhs) except share and per share data, unless  

 
 V. C. Shah & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Ecofy Finance Private Limited  

Viral. J. Shah 
Partner  

Rajashree Nambiar 
Co-founder, Managing Director & CEO 

 

Govind Sankaranarayanan 
Co-founder, Wholetime Director & COO 

Place :  
Date  : 

Khwahish Rawal 
Company Secretary
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated 
Ind AS Financial Statements 
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated 

Ecofy Finance 
Private Limited (formerly known as Accretive 
Cleantech Finance Private Limited)

accounting principles generally accepted in India 

Basis for Opinion

Other Information

Responsibilities of Management and Those 
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Ind AS Financial Statements 

and other irregularities; the selection and application 

To the Members of ECOFY FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ACCERTIVE CLEANTECH 
FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED)
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and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

related to going concern and using the going concern 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

 I

 
relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

 

accounting estimates and related disclosures 

 

related to events or conditions that may cast 

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 

 

represent the underlying transactions and events 
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other matters that may reasonably be thought to 

Other Matters

statements and our report on Other Legal and 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

 

 A

 W

 I

 T

 I

 

 T

 W

its subsidiary company incorporated in India 

 

 I

 Consolidated Independent Auditor’s Report (contd.)
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Act related to the managerial remuneration 
is not applicable;

 

 T

including derivative contracts;

company incorporated in India;

  

and the respective management 

than as disclosed in the notes to the 

been advanced or loaned or invested 

premium or any other sources or kind 

indirectly lend or invest in other persons 

   

or invest in other persons or entities 

    
considered reasonable and appropriate 

come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations 

 T
nor paid any dividend during the year and 

declared nor paid any dividend during the 

 T

 T

the same has operated throughout the 

V. C. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Viral. J. Shah 
Partner  

 

Place :  
Date  : 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Note 
No.

As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

ASSETS
1. Financial assets

4  -    -   

Loans
Investments

Total Financial Assets  48,821.08  23,225.16 
 

 -    -   
Intangible assets under development
Other intangible assets  -   

Total Non-Financial Assets  5,375.37  3,596.57 
TOTAL ASSETS  54,196.45  26,821.74 
II LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
 LIABILITIES
1. Financial assets

 -    -   

 -    -   

Total Financial Liabilities  12,013.43  1,681.94 
 

 -    -   

Total Non Financial Liabilities  444.50  156.10 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  12,457.93  1,838.04 
3. Equity - -

20
TOTAL EQUITY  41,738.51  24,983.70 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  54,196.45  26,821.74 

 
 V. C. Shah & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Ecofy Finance Private Limited  

Viral. J. Shah 
Partner  

Rajashree Nambiar 
Co-founder, Managing Director & CEO 

 

Govind Sankaranarayanan 
Co-founder, Wholetime Director & COO 

Place :  
Date  : 

Khwahish Rawal 
Company Secretary
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Consolidated Statement of 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Note 
No.

For the Year ended  
March 31, 2024 

For the period ended  
March 31, 2023 

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Interest income

22
Other Operating income

Total revenue from operations  3,452.93  279.94 
Other Income 24

Total income  3,490.79  314.83 
Expenses

Total expenses  8,311.73  2,798.92 
       (4,820.94)  (2,484.09)

Exceptional items

    (4,820.94)  (2,484.09)
Tax Expense:

 -    -   
Total tax expenses
Total expenses  (1,164.70)  (552.53)

 or  y     (3,656.24)  (1,931.56)
Other comprehensive income  -   

           -   

Subtotal (B)  0.44  -   
         

Subtotal (C) -  -   
   or  y       =  +  0.44  -   

    or  y     +  (3,655.79)  (1,931.56)
Earnings per equity share (face value of ` 10 each)

`  (1.00)  (3.44)
`  (1.00)  (3.44)

 
 V. C. Shah & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Ecofy Finance Private Limited  

Viral. J. Shah 
Partner  

Rajashree Nambiar 
Co-founder, Managing Director & CEO 

 

Govind Sankaranarayanan 
Co-founder, Wholetime Director & COO 

Place :  
Date  : 

Khwahish Rawal 
Company Secretary
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow Statement

(` in Lakh)
Particulars  For the Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
 For the period ended 

March 31, 2023 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

     (4,820.94)  (2,484.09)
Adjustments for: 

 -   

 -   

    w    (4,801.78)  (2,182.60)
Change in working capital:

Increase in provisions
Cash (used in) operating activities  (38,126.47)  (3,076.27)

Net cash (used in) operating activities (A)  (38,145.40)  (3,082.78)
  w    : 

          10,321.81  (22,997.69)
 w    :

 -   

       28,609.52  26,757.93 
          785.93  677.47 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  677.47  -   

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1,463.39  677.47 
Components of cash and cash equivalents

 -    -   

     in current accounts

TOTAL  1,463.40  676.95 

 
 V. C. Shah & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Ecofy Finance Private Limited  

Viral. J. Shah 
Partner  

Rajashree Nambiar 
Co-founder, Managing Director & CEO 

 

Govind Sankaranarayanan 
Co-founder, Wholetime Director & COO 

Place :  
Date  : 

Khwahish Rawal 
Company Secretary
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Consolidated Statement of changes in equity 

A. Equity Share Capital

As at March 31, 2024 (` in Lakh)
 Balance at the beginning of the year  Changes in 

Equity Share 
Capital due to 

prior period 
errors 

 Restated 
balance at the 

beginning of 
the current 

reporting year 

Changes in 
equity share 

capital during 
the year 

(Issued during 
the year)

 Balance as at the 
end of the year 

 27,000.00  -    27,000  15,600  42,600 

B. Instruments in the nature of equity
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2024 

 As at  
March 31, 2023 

0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference shares of ` 10 
each, fully paid-up 
Balance as at the beginning of the year  -    -   

 -   
 -    -   

       y     4,500  -   

C. Equity Share Capital
 As at March 31, 2023 

(` in Lakh)
 Balance at the beginning of the period  Changes in 

Equity Share 
Capital due to 

prior period 
errors 

 Restated 
balance at the 

beginning of 
the current 

reporting period 

Changes in 
equity share 

capital during 
the period 

(Issued during 
the period) 

 Balance as at the 
end of the year 

 -    -    -    27,000  27,000 

 Other equity
 As at March 31, 2024 

(` in Lakh)
Particulars Reserves & Surplus

Total Statutory 
  

45-IC 

Securities 
Premium

Retained 
Earnings

Stock option 
outstanding 

account 

Share Issue 
Expense 
Reserve

current reporting year
 -    (2,016.30)

the current year
 -    -    0.44 

 -    -    -   
 -    -    (3,656.23)
 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    366.14 
 (55.54)

Balance at the end of the current 
reporting year

 -    146.69  (5,672.09)  366.14  (55.54)  (5,361.49)
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 As at March 31, 2023 

(` in Lakh)
Particulars Reserves & Surplus

Total Statutory 
  

45-IC 

Securities 
Premium

Retained 
Earnings

 -    -    62.19 
 -    -    (2,078.25)
 -    84.50 
 -    -    -    -   

 -    (84.74)
Balance at the end of the current reporting period  -    146.69  (2,162.99)  (2,016.30)

 
 V. C. Shah & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Ecofy Finance Private Limited  

Viral. J. Shah 
Partner  

Rajashree Nambiar 
Co-founder, Managing Director & CEO 

 

Govind Sankaranarayanan 
Co-founder, Wholetime Director & COO 

Place :  
Date  : 

Khwahish Rawal 
Company Secretary

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity 
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

3. Cash and cash equivalents 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 CASH ON HAND  -    0.51 
  -  in current accounts 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -    -   

 Total  1,463.40  677.46 

4.  Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 -   
 Total  -   

5. Trade Receivable
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 Unsecured, considered good  
 10.37  58.64 

 -   
Total  10.27  58.64 
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(` in Lakh)

Particulars

 
Unbilled 

Less than  
6 months 

6 
months  
- 1 year 

 1-2 
years 

 2-3 
years 

Above 3 
years

Total

 As at March 31, 2024 
 -    -    -    -    -    10.37 

have  
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Impaired
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Impaired
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Sub Total  -    10.37  -    -    -    -    10.37 
 -    -    -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -    -    0.10 

Total  -    10.27  -    -    -    -    10.27 
As at March 31, 2023

 -    -    -    58.64 
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Sub Total  -    57.51  0.72  0.41  -    -    58.64 
 -    -    -    58.64 
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  -    57.51  0.72  0.41  -    -    58.64 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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6.  Loans
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Loans at amortised cost 
(A) 

  Term loans 
Total Gross Loans  36,261.10  1,206.98 

 742.03  38.88 
Total Net Loans  35,519.07  1,168.10 
(B) 
Secured by tangible assets 

 -   
Total Gross Loans  36,261.10  1,206.98 

Total Net Loans  35,519.07  1,168.10 
(C) 
Loans in India

  Others
Total Gross Loans  36,261.10  1,206.98 

Total - Net (a)  35,519.07  1,168.10 
Loans outside India (b)  -    -   

 -   35,519.07  1,168.10 

7. Investments 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Investments - at FVTPL  11,742.29  21,262.93 

Investments - at amortised cost  -    -   
 -    -   

Total Net Investments 
Investments in India 
Investments outside India  -    -   

Total – Gross Investments  11,742.29  21,262.93 
 -    -   

Total – Net Investments  11,742.29  21,262.93 

   
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Lease deposits
 -   
 -   

Total  86.05  58.03 
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9. Current tax assets (net) 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Current tax assets

Total  18.93  11.16 

10. Deferred tax assets (net) 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets 
     on   - 

Others  -   
Total (A)  1,795.40  560.43 

     on   - 
D    wn  o       
intangible assets

 -   
 -    -   

 -   

Others  -    -   
Total (B)  109.76  39.34 
Deferred tax Asset (net) (A-B)  1,685.64  521.09 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Deferred tax Asset (net) (A-B)  1,685.64  521.09 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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11.   Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets for the year 2023-24 
 (` in Lakh)
Particulars Gross block  Depreciation and Amortisation Net block 

 Opening 
as at 
April  

01, 2023 

Addition Deletion  Closing 
as at 
Mar  

31, 2024 

 Opening 
as at 
April  

01, 2023 

  
Adjustment 

 For 
the 

period 

 Closing 
as at 
Mar  

31, 2024 

 Closing 
as at 
Mar  

31, 2024 

Property, plant and 
equipments (a)

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
Leasehold 
Improvement

 -   

 -   
Sub-total  1,608.31  470.96  8.79 2,070.48  174.64  3.40 354.28  525.52 1,544.96 

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Sub-total  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   -
Intangible Assets (b)

 -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Sub-total  -    70.71  -    70.71  -    -    6.60  6.60  64.11 
Intangible asset under 
development

 -    -    -    -    -   

Sub-total  13.89  17.70  -    31.59  -    -    -    -    31.59 
Total  1,622.21  559.37  8.79  2,172.78  174.64  3.40 360.88  532.12 1,640.66 

 Capital Work in Progress aging
As at March 31, 2024 (` in Lakh)

Particulars

 Less 
than 1 

year 

 1-2 
years 

 2-3 
years 

 more 
than 3 
years 

 Total 

-  -    -    -   -

 Intangible asset under development aging
As at March 31, 2024 (` in Lakh)

Particulars

 Less 
than 1 

year 

 1-2 
years 

 2-3 
years 

 more 
than 3 
years 

 Total 

 -    -    -    31.59 
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Capital Work in Progress aging

As at March 31, 2023 (` in Lakh)

Particulars

 Less 
than 1 

year 

 1-2 
years 

 2-3 
years 

 more 
than 3 
years 

 Total 

 -    -    -    -    -   

 Intangible asset under development aging
As at March 31, 2023 (` in Lakh)

Particulars

 Less 
than 1 

year 

 1-2 
years 

 2-3 
years 

 more 
than 3 
years 

 Total 

 -    -    -    13.89 

 11.1 Acquisition through Business Combination

`  
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(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at November 18,2022

Purchase Consideration paid (A)  1,415.26 
Fair Value of Assets Acquired
Non-Current Assets

Long-term loans and advances
Current Assets
Trade receivables

Short-term loans and advances
Other current assets
Total Assets [i]  310.70 
Liabilities Assumed

Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Short-term provisions
Total Liabilities [ii]  327.86 

   A    -17.16 

   on 

 -   
Total  1,432.42 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31,2023

  
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Advance to Suppliers

 -   
 -   

Total  487.97  152.01 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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13. Trade payables
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Trade payables  -   
 -    -   

Total  4.18  79.21 

 The ageing for trade payables as on  March 31, 2024 is as follows:
(` in Lakh)

Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the  
due date of payment

Less 
than 6 

months

6 
Months 
- 1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

Total

 -    -   
 -    -    -    4.18 

 -   
 -   

Total  1.44  2.74  -    -    -    4.18 

 The ageing for trade payables as on  March 31, 2023 is as follows:
(` in Lakh)

Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the due  
date of payment

Less 
than 6 

months

6 
Months 
- 1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

Total

 -    -   
 -    -    -    -    79.21 

 -   
 -   

Total  79.21  -    -    -    -    79.21 

 Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

  T
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(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 T  -    -   

 T  -    -   

 T  -    -   

 T  -    -   

 T  -    -   

 T
accounting period

 -    -   

 T  -    -   

- -

14. Borrowings (other than debt securities)
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

(a) Term loans
 -   

 -    -   
Total  8,710.73  33.72 

Secured
 -    -   

Total  8,710.73  33.72 

 (i) Details of terms of repayment and security provided in respect of secured term 
loans:

Details of repayment terms, interest and maturity  Nature of security 

 T
` ` 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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 Terms of repayment of the term loans
 T

(` in Lakh)
Repayment within 0-12 months 12-24 months 24-36 

months
36-60 

months
Total

 From Banks : 

 6,000.00 

 From Other Parties : 

 2,761.50 

 Total  4,261.50  2,000.00  1,250.00  1,250.00  8,761.50 

 Terms of repayment of the term loans
 T

(` in Lakh)
Repayment within 
(Payable in monthly instalments)

0-12 months 12-24 months 24-36 
months

36-60 
months

Total

For Other Parties :

 33.72 

Total  22.29  11.43  -    -    33.72 

*Rate of interest on term loans considered on an annualised basis payable monthly for reporting purpose.

 Security and other terms of the loans are as follows :

  T

  T

  

  
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

(a) Interest accrued and due;
Others payables :

Lease liabilities
Other liabilities

 -   
 -   
 -   

Total  3,298.52  1,569.01 
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   by  AS 116 -  
 (A) Lease liability movement

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Opening Balance  -   

Interest on Lease liability
 -    -   

Lease rental payments
Balance at the end of the period  967.53  1,076.89 

      

    y  

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 -    -   
 - Short Term Asset  -   

    Y  

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 -    -   
 - Short Term Asset  -   

    or   

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 -    -   

 (D) Maturity analysis of lease liability

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

16. Current tax liabilities (net)
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 -    -   

 Total  -    -   

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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17. Provisions
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 Total   141.86  44.34 

  
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Statutory dues payable 

Total  192.88  79.43 

19.  Equity Share Capital 
 Details of authorised, issued and subscribed share capital :

(` in Lakh)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

Authorised capital
`

`  -    -    -    -   
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

`

Total  Equity  426,000,000  42,600  270,000,000  27,000.00 
Instruments in the nature of equity

`
 -    -   

Total   471,000,000  47,100  270,000,000  27,000 

 a)  Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of 
the period :

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

 -    -   

Outstanding at the end of the period  426,000,000  42,600.00  270,000,000  27,000.00 
*During the period the Company has issued 156,000,000 equity shares of ` 10 each .

 b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares :    

T `
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 c)  Details of shares held by holding company and its subsidiaries 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares % of holding No. of Shares % of holding

Equity shares with voting rights

Total  374,999,999 88.03%  269,999,999 100%

 d) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity share capital :

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares % of holding No. of Shares % of holding

Total  419,999,999 98.59%  269,999,999 100%

 e) Disclosures of Shareholding of Promoters - Shares held by the Promoters

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares % of holding No. of Shares % of holding

 -   

 -   
 -   

Total  426,000,000 100%  270,000,000 100%

 f)  A

 g  

 h) 

20. Other Equity 
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

 -    -   
Securities premium  -    -   

Stock option outstanding account  
Total   (5,361.49)  (2,016.30)

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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 Nature and purpose of reserves :
 i) Securities Premium Account

    45-IC   RBI A  1934

   -      

 

 iv) Stock option outstanding account 

 V) Details of dividend payment

i. To Equity shareholders

ii. To 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference shareholders

21. Interest income
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

 At Amortised Cost: 
 Interest on loans 

 Total  1,919.15  22.38 

22. Net gain on fair value changes
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

  on         
loss :-
(

Total  1,329.89  154.12 
Fair value changes:

Total  1,329.89  154.12 
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23. Other Operating Income
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

 Fees and commission income 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 Total  203.89  103.44 

24. Other income
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

 -   
 -   

 Other miscellaneous income 
 -   

 Total  37.87  34.89 

25. Finance costs
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

Interest Costs 
  on      

cost: 

(a) Interest on borrowings  100.70  5.71 
 -   

(b) Interest on lease liabilities 
Interest on lease liabilities

(c) Other interest expense   9.95  1.17 

 -   
Total  226.24  45.08 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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26. Fees and commissions expenses
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

 -   
TOTAL  89.55  16.19 

  on  
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

 On       
  on   

  - Loans 
 -   

 Total  741.47  38.88 

  
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

Share based payments to employees  -   
Total  4,682.82  1,453.13 

29. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

intangible assets 

Total  360.88  103.18 
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30. Other expenses
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 Total  2,210.78  1,142.46 

* Payments to auditor includes:  (` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 Total  18.90  8.40 

 30.1.  CSR Expenses   

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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31. Earnings Per share
 

 

 T
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

 W
share

`

`

*In view of losses during the current year and previous year, the options which are anti-dilutive have been ignored in the 
calculation of diluted earnings per share. Accordingly, there is no variation between basic and diluted earnings per share.

32. ECL on Loans
 32.1.   

 
 
 

 

 32.2. Probability of Default (PD)

 32.3. Loss Given Default (LGD)

 32.4. Exposure at Default (EAD)
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 32.5. An analysis of changes in gross carrying amount as follows
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024

Category

Assets 
category

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount

Expected 
Credit Loss  

(Refer note 39)

Net 
Carrying 
Amount

PD (%)

Loan

Loan

increase in credit risk
Loan

Total  36,261.10  742.03  35,519.07 

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023

Category

Assets 
category

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount

Expected 
Credit Loss  

(Refer note 39)

Net 
Carrying 
Amount

PD (%)

Loan
Loan  -    -    -   

increase in credit risk
Loan  -    -    -   

Total  1,473.45  38.88  1,434.57 

 32.6. 

As at March 31, 2024 (` in Lakh)

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying amount opening balance  -    -    1,473.45 
 63,490.77 

 (28,665.33)

 (104.57)
 93.39 

 11.18 

derecognition

 -   

 (37.79)
Gross carrying amount closing balance  36,156.52  93.39  11.18  36,261.10 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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As at March 31, 2023 (` in Lakh)

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying amount opening balance
 -    -    1,707.38 
 -    -    (233.94)

 -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -   

derecognition

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   
Gross carrying amount closing balance  1,473.45  -    -    1,473.45 

Note : Gross carrying amount does not include loan commitment of ` 1,929.45 lakhs.

 32.7. 
As at March 31, 2024 (` in Lakh)

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  Total 

ECL allowance - opening balances  -    -    38.88 
 714.71 

 -   

 (40.59)
 26.13  26.13 

 14.46  14.46 
Impact on period end ECL of exposures 
transferred between stages during the 
period

 26.13  14.46  753.59 

 -    3.04  8.52  11.56 
ECL allowance - closing balance  713.00  23.08  5.94  742.03 

 
As at March 31, 2023 (` in Lakh)

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  Total 

ECL allowance - opening balances
 -    -    38.88 

Impact on period end ECL of exposures 
transferred between stages during the 
period

 38.88  -    -    38.88 

ECL allowance - closing balance  38.88  -    -    38.88 
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33. Tax Expense
 33.1      

(` in Lakh)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 

Current tax expense
 -    -   
 -    -   

Total current tax expense (A)  -    -   
      

Deferred tax expense (B)  (1,164.86)  (552.53)
   or  y   (1,164.86)  (552.53)

 33.2      
(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

         

Tax using the Company's statutory tax rate (B)
  

 -    -   

income
 -    -   
 -    -   

 -    -   
Others  (2.25)

Total tax expense  (1,164.55)  (552.53)
 -   

 (1,164.55)  (552.53)
Total tax liability  (1,164.55)  (552.53)

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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   T  A   
FY 2023-24 (` in Lakh)

Particulars

Opening as at 
April 1, 2023

Recognised in 
P&L

Recognised 
in OCI

Closing as 
at March 31, 

2024

 -   

 -   
 -    -    -    -   

 -   
 -   

scheme outstanding
 -    -   

 -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -   

 -   
 -   

   wn  o    
and equipment and intangible assets

 (34.82)  (32.59)  -    (67.40)

Deferred Processing Fees on Borrowing  -    (13.21)  -    (13.21)
Deferred loan sourcing cost allowed upfront in 
income tax

 (0.81)  (28.34)  -    (29.15)

Others  -    4.58  -    4.58 
Total  521.09  1,164.70  (0.16)  1,685.64 

FY 2022-23 (` in Lakh)

Particulars

Opening as at 
April 1, 2023

Recognised in 
P&L

Recognised 
in OCI

Closing as 
at March 31, 

2024

 -    -   

 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -    -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

scheme outstanding
 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

 -    -    -    -   
 -    -   

Total  -    521.08  -    521.08 
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 35.A    

`

 35.B    

`

 A  h    : 

Interest rate risk:

Salary Risk: 

Investment Risk:

Asset Liability Matching Risk:

Mortality risk: 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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 1. Changes in present value of obligations
(` in Lakh)

Nature of Transaction As at  
March 31, 2024

As at 
 March 31, 2023

PVO at beginning of period  15.31  -   
Interest cost  -   

 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

 -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

Settlements  -    -   

 -   
PVO at end of period  88.81  15.31 

  -   
Interest cost  -   

 V    A  
 -    -   

Interest Income  -    -   
 

 -   
 -    -   

 -   
 

 -   
Interest Income  -    -   

 -   
  on  

Less Interest income included above  -    -   
 -    -   

 A   on 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 V    A
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

Interest Income  -    -   
 -    -   
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(` in Lakh)

Nature of Transaction As at  
March 31, 2024

As at 
 March 31, 2023

 -   
 -    -   

 -   
 -    -   

   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

    r    b     
o   &   

 -    -   

 A       (88.81)  (15.31)
11        P & L

 -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

12 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
 -   

 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

 -   
13        

 -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

 -    -   
 -   
 -   

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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(` in Lakh)

Nature of Transaction As at  
March 31, 2024

As at 
 March 31, 2023

14   Schedule III of The Companies Act 2013

15   Projected Service Cost March 31, 2025

Assumptions as at As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
 March 31, 2023

Annual increase in healthcare costs

(` in Lakh)

Sensitivity Analysis As at  
March 31, 2024

As at 
 March 31, 2023

DR: Discount Rate

ER: Salary Escalation Rate

 
 

Expected Payout  (` in Lakh)

Year Payouts

 T

 T
 

 Accumulated Compensated Absences 

 T
`  

`
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36 Employee Stock Option Scheme
 T

 

 36.A Equity Settled
 T

Particulars

Number 
of Options 

Granted

Grant 
Date

Vesting Conditions and 
Vesting Period

Exercise 
Price  
(in `)

Weighted average fair 
value of the options 

at grant date (in `)

parameter

Tranche 2
parameter

 Fair value of share options granted 

 T

Inputs in to the pricing model 

Particulars ESOP Scheme 2023 - Tranche 1 ESOP Scheme 2023 - Tranche 2

* The risk-free interest rate being considered for the calculation is the interest rate applicable for maturity equal to the 

continuously compounded rates of return on the stock over a period of time. since each vest has been considered as a 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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Particulars ESOP 2023 - Tranche 1 ESOP 2023 - Tranche 2

4 Years

 
plans
 An

 36.B Summary of share based payments:

Particulars
ESOP 2023 - 

Tranche 1
ESOP 2023 - 

Tranche 2
Total

 Outstanding balance at the beginning of the period  -    -    -   

 -   
 -    -    -   
 -    -    -   

 Options Lapsed  -    -    -   
 Options outstanding at the end of the period  38,432,550  680,000  39,112,550 
 Options exercisable at the end of the period  -    -    -   

37. Disclosure of transactions with related parties as required by Ind AS 24

 35.A. List of related parties
(` in Lakh)

Relationship Name of the Related Party

a) Holding Company
b) Subsidiary Company
c) Key Management Personnel

37.B.            

a) ECUBE Investment Advisor Private Limited

b) Grovepike Associates
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 37.C. Transactions with related parties 
(` in Lakh)

Nature of 
Transaction

Description  For the Year  
ended March 31, 2024 

 For the period  
ended March 31, 2023 

Shared-based payments  -    -   
 -   

(` in Lakh)

Nature of 
Transaction

Nature of 
relationship

Name of the related 
party

 For the Year  
ended  

March 31, 2024 

 For the period  
ended  

March 31, 2023 

 I
Shares
 I
Shares

 -   

Sankaranarayanan
 -   

 37.D. Balances with related parties
(` in Lakh)

Nature of 
Transaction

Nature of 
relationship

Name of the related 
party

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

 

  -   

Sankaranarayanan
 -   

38. Capital
 i) Capital Management

 ii) Regulatory capital
(` in Lakh)

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2024 

 As at  
March 31, 2023 

    + T   41,103.87  24,567.94 

1.44% 0.15%
CRAR   + T   80.28% 96.08%

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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 iii) Liquidity Coverage Ratio 
 

39. Events after reporting date
 T

40. Fair values

 

 I

 Fair Value Hierarchy
 T

 T
assets or liabilities

    T

   T

   T

   T
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 V          
As at March 31, 2024  (` in Lakh)

Particulars Fair value measurement using

Carrying 
Value

Quoted prices in  
active markets - 

Level 1

  
observable inputs - 

Level 2

  
unobservable inputs 

- Level 3

Total

Financial Assets
Investments  11,742.29 

 11,742.29  11,742.29  -    -    11,742.29 

As at March 31, 2023 (` in Lakh)

Particulars Fair value measurement using

Carrying 
Value

Quoted prices  
in active  

markets - Level 1

  
observable  

inputs - Level 2

  
unobservable  

inputs - Level 3

Total

Financial Assets
Investments  21,262.93 

Total  21,262.93  21,262.93  -    -    21,262.93 

 

 Fair value of Financial Instrument Recognition
 Financial instrument by category

 T

(` in Lakh)

Particulars
Amortised 

cost
FVTPL FVOCI Total carrying 

amount

Financial asset
 -    -   

 -  -    -    -   
 -    -   

Loans  -    -   
Investments  -   

 -    -   
Total  37,078.78  11,742.29  -    48,821.08 
Financial Liability

 -    -   
 -    -    -    -   

 -    -   
 -    -   

Total  12,013.43  -    -    12,013.43 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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 T

(` in Lakh)

Particulars Amortised 
cost

FVTPL FVOCI Total carrying 
amount

Financial asset
 -    -   

 -    -    -    -   
 -    -   

Loans  -    -   
Investments  -   

 -    -   
Total  1,962.23  21,262.93  -    23,225.17 
Financial Liability

 -    -   
 -    -    -    -   

 -    -   
 -    -   

Total  1,684.13  -    -    1,684.13 

 Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

ASSETS
Financial assets

 -    -    677.46 
 -    58.64 

Loans  1,168.10 
Investments  -    -    21,262.93 

 58.03 
Total Financial Assets  30,994.53  17,826.55  48,821.08  22,542.50  682.66  23,225.16 

 
 -    -    11.16 
 -    -    553.42 
 -    -    342.48 

 -    1,091.19 
Intangible assets under development  -    -    13.89 
Other intangible assets  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    1,432.42 
 -    152.01 

Total Non-Financial Assets  668.26  4,707.11  5,374.93  152.01  3,444.57  3,596.57 
TOTAL ASSETS  31,662.79  22,533.66  54,196.01  22,694.51  4,127.23  26,821.74 
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(` in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables

A. Trade payables  -    -    -    -   
 
small enterprises                                            

 -    -    -    -   

 
other than micro and small 
enterprises

 79.21 

B. Other payables  -    - - -
 
small enterprises                                            

 -    -    -    -    -   

 
other than micro and small enterprises

 -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   
 33.72 

 1,569.01 
Total Financial Liabilities  7,213.15  4,800.29  12,013.43  759.66  922.28  1,681.94 

 
 -    -    -    -    -    -   
 -    44.34 
 -    -    32.33 

 -    -    79.43 
Total Non Financial Liabilities  192.88  251.62  444.50  79.54  76.56  156.10 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  7,406.03  5,051.90  12,457.93  839.20  998.84  1,838.04 

41. Financial Risk Management objectives and policies
 

 T

 T

 

 

 

 

 A
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  T

     

Nature of 
Risk 

Due to Framework Monitoring 

loss arising out 

their repayment 
obligations to the 

appointed risk 
management 

committee 

  

 

change in the business environment 

 

instruments 
due to changes 

in the market 
variables such 

currency and 

Asset Liability 

 

 

liabilities; and

Operational Operational risk 
is the risk arising 

processes or 

people and 
systems

 

 

processes
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Nature of 
Risk 

Due to Framework Monitoring 

arises due to 
inability to 

meet business 

or repayment 

Asset Liability 
 

 

 

 

 

42. Segment Infromation
 

 T

Segement Activities Covered

 

 

 S

segment

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (contd.)
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 T

 (` in Lakh)

Particulars Period Ended March 31, 2024

Financing 
Activities

Other reconciling 
Items

Total

 2,160.91 
Less: Inter Segment Revenue
Net Revenue  1,919.15  241.76  2,160.91 

 (6,150.8)
 -    -    1,329.89 

   T  (5,800.3)  (350.5)  (4,820.9)
Segment Assets  54,196.45 

Unallocated corporate asstes
Total Assets  38,887.32  15,309.13  54,196.45 

Segment Liabilities  12,457.93 
Other unallocable liabilities  -    -    -   

Total Liabilities  11,335.71  1,122.23  12,457.93 

43. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
 43.1 Contingent Liability

(` in Lakh)

Description of Contingent Liability  As at  
March 31, 2024 

 As at  
March 31, 2023 

 -  -
-

 43.2 Capital and Other commitments
(` in Lakh)

Description of Capital and Other commitments  As at  
March 31, 2024 

 As at  
March 31, 2023 

Loans sanctioned not yet disbursed  -   
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Form AOC -1
       J  V      

Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Part “A” : Subsidiaries

S. No. Particulars Amount (` In Lakh)

2
 - 

4

Total Assets

Investments -

-

        Notes: (i)  Total liabilities are inclusive of share capital and reserves. 
            (ii) Turnover includes other income and other operating revenue.

Part “B”: Associates
Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies  

S. No. Particulars Amount (` In Lakh)

2

Investment in Associate
4

 
 V. C. Shah & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Ecofy Finance Private Limited  

Govind Sankaranarayanan 
Co-founder, Wholetime Director & COO 

Rajashree Nambiar 
Co-founder, Managing Director & CEO 

 

Place :  
Date  : 
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